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REGULAR SESSION 
City Hall – 205 North Main Street 


6:00 p.m. 
March 7, 2016 


Tentative 
 


1.  Pledge of Allegiance 
 


2.  Roll Call  
 
3.  Minutes of the February 1, 2016 Regular Session 
 
4.  Public Participation *** (Individuals addressing the Council are asked to step to the 


microphone and clearly state their name and address before speaking.  Five minute time limit 
– see back of agenda for rules)  *** 


 
5.  Community Project Report *** (Public Participation rules apply) *** 


 
6.  Municipal Pool/Ball Field Status *** (Public Participation rules apply) *** 


 
7.  City Manager’s Report 
 
8.  Unfinished Business 
 
9.  New Business 
 


a. Audit Presentation – Hochschild, Bloom & Company LLP  (attached) 
 


b. First Reading Bill 2016-7, AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING A MANAGEMENT 
AGREEMENT FOR THE CAMERON AQUATIC FACILITY BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF CAMERON, CLINTON AND DeKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI; THE 
CAMERON PARK BOARD; AND, CAMERON REGIONAL YMCA (attached)  


c. Full Reading Bill 2016-8,  AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF CAMERON, 
CLINTON AND DeKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS 
WITH RESPECT TO AND APPROVING THE MP-L4 REDEVELOPMENT PLAN, 
THE REDEVELOPMENT AREA AND THE REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT; AND 
OTHER ACTIONS RELATED THERETO (Puckett-Tax Increment Financing) 
(attached) 


d. Full Reading Bill 2016-9,  AN ORDINANCE SELECTING THE DEVELOPER FOR 
THE MP-L4 REDEVELOPMENT PLAN AND APPROVING THE DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT FOR THE REDEVELOPMENT AREA THEREUNDER; AND 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF DOCUMENTS AND THE TAKING OF 
ACTIONS RELATING THERETO (Puckett – Tax Increment Financing) (attached) 
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e. First Reading Bill 2015-10, AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF CAMERON, 
CLINTON AND DeKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI AMENDING THE CITY CODE 
OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 5 HEALTH AND SANITATION, ARTICLE IV, 
ANIMALS, DIVISION 2 DOGS, REPEALING AND REPLACING EXISTING 
SECTION  5-101 TO ESTABLISH GUIDELINES FOR IDENTIFYING AND 
CONTROLLING DANGEROUS DOGS (attached) 


 
f. First Reading Bill 2016-11, AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF CAMERON, 


CLINTON AND DeKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI ADOPTING UPDATES TO THE 
CITY OF CAMERON COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 2030 (attached) 
 


g. First Reading Bill 2016-12, AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER OF THE CITY OF CAMERON, CLINTON AND DeKALB COUNTIES, 
MISSOURI TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH APAC-MISSOURI, INC. FOR 
THE US 36 NORTH WALNUT STREET OVERPASS, STP-7000(105) AND THE 
PEDESTRIAN ACCESS ALONG NORTH WALNUT STREET FROM GRAND 
AVENUE TO BALDWIN ROAD, STP-7000(106) PROJECT (attached) 
 


h. Resolution 2016-4, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY CLERK OF THE 
CITY OF CAMERON, CLINTON AND DeKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI TO 
DESTROY CERTAIN RECORDS IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE 
RETENTION SCHEDULES (attached) 
 


i. Resolution 2016-5, A RESOLUTION FOR THE CITY OF CAMERON, CLINTON 
AND DeKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI APPROVING BUDGET ADJUSTMENT 
ONE (1)) FOR THE BUDGET YEAR OF OCTOBER 1, 2015 TO SEPTEMBER 30, 
2016 (attached)  
 


j. Resolution 2016-6, A RESOLUTION FOR THE CITY OF CAMERON, CLINTON 
AND DeKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI TO DESIGNATE AN OFFICIAL 
REPRESENTATIVE AND ALTERNATE REPRESENTATIVE TO THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE GREAT NORTHWEST WHOLESALE WATER COMMISSION 
 


k. Resolution 2016-7, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CAMERON, CLINTON AND DeKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI REQUESTING A 
FORMAL OPINION FROM THE MISSOURI ATTORNEY GENERAL (attached) 


 
l. Resolution 2016-8, A RESOLUTION FOR THE CITY OF CAMERON, CLINTON 


AND DeKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI TO ACCEPT A PROPOSAL FOR A 
COMPACT CABLE FAULT LOCATOR FROM ARKANSAS ELECTRIC 
COOPERATIVES, INC. (attached) 


 
m. Resolution 2016-9, A RESOLUTION FOR THE CITY OF CAMERON, CLINTON 


AND DeKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI ACCEPTING THE BIDS FOR THE SIXTH 
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STREET AND LATHROP STREET PROJECT AND AWARDING THE BID TO BRS 
CONSTRUCTION, LLC. (attached) 
 


n. Economic Development of Cameron (EDOC) Request for Work Session with Council – 
Kent Osborn 
 
 


10. Public Participation *** (Individuals addressing the Council are asked to step to the 
microphone and clearly state their name and address before speaking.  Five minute time limit 
– see back of agenda for rules) *** 
 


11.  Miscellaneous  
 


12. Adjourn 
 


The meeting will be open to the public.   
 


Copies of the Bills referred to above will be available for public inspection prior to the meeting 
in the office of the City Clerk. 


 
In accordance with ADA guidelines, if you need special accommodations to attend any City 


meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s Office at 816-632-2177 at least three working days prior 
to the scheduled meeting. 


   
The City of Cameron does not discriminate against 


 the physically or mentally impaired. 
 


Dated:  March 3, 2016                                                  Barbara J. O’Connor, CMC  
City Clerk/Finance Clerk 
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CITY OF CAMERON 
MINUTES 


FEBRUARY 1, 2016 
 
 


REGULAR SESSION 
 


Darlene Breckenridge  P 
Dennis M. Clark  P 
Jerri Ann Eddins  P 
Ronnie Jack   P 
Lynn Rogers   P 


 
The City Council of the City of Cameron, Missouri met in Regular Session on Monday, 


the 1st day of February 2016, at six o’clock p.m. at City Hall.  Mayor Dennis M. Clark led the 
Pledge of Allegiance to the flag of the United States of America.  


 
Mayor Dennis M. Clark presided with the following Councilmembers present:  Darlene 


Breckenridge, Jerri Ann Eddins, Ronnie Jack and Lynn Rogers.   Absent:  none.  
 
Present were City Manager Mark Gaugh, Attorney for the City Troy Dietrich and City 


Clerk/Finance Clerk Barbara J. O’Connor. 
 
Minutes of the January 19, 2016, Council Session were approved as submitted with a 


unanimous voice vote on motion made by Councilmember Breckenridge and seconded by 
Councilmember Jack. 


 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 


 
 John Feighert, 202 Golden Eagle Lane, expressed his concern about the City spending 
money, the cost of the sidewalk improvements on Walnut Street, the price of the patching 
machine being purchased by the City, the multi-use trail grant, and the water pipeline project. 
 


COMMUNITY PROJECT REPORT 
 


None. 
 


MUNICIPAL POOL/BALL FIELD STATUS 
 
Mayor Clark said Council and Staff have been frugal with spending in the General Fund 


and are living within our means.  Mayor Clark said other cities have amenities that would be nice 
for Cameron to have.  An affordable plan is needed which would include a question of standards, 
not a plan that will just get the City by.  A solution needs to be found that all can live with. 
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CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 


1. Next Council Meeting. City Manager Gaugh said the next Council Session falls on 
President’s Day and suggested only having one (1) Session in February.  The next 
Council Session will be March 7, 2016.  Council had no objections. 


2. Great Northwest Days. City Manager Gaugh, Community Development Director 
Hamilton and Mike O’Donnell will attend Great Northwest Days in Jefferson City. 
This is an opportunity to meet with the legislators regarding municipal issues.  


3. Street Projects. Bids were opened on January 28 for the sidewalk projects that extend 
sidewalks from north of Sutherlands to the north side of Highway 36. Four (4) bids 
were received and two (2) of the bids were lower than the Engineers’ estimate. The 
Missouri Department of Transportation is now reviewing the bids. 


4. Lathrop/Mead Area Project. The engineer’s estimate for the project is just over 
$1,000,000.  This project is eight (8) blocks and will begin this spring.  


5. Budget Transfer.  City Manager Gaugh said Council has discussed transferring 
$250,000 from the General Fund Reserve to the Public Works Operating budget for 
street repairs.  
 


UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 


Bill 2016-3, AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CAMERON, CLINTON AND 
DeKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI, AMENDING SECTION 6-156.3 OF ARTICLE V– 
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES, IN CHAPTER 6– LICENSES AND BUSINESS 
REGULATIONS OF THE CITY OF CAMERON CODE TO ALLOW THE CITY OF 
CAMERON TO ISSUE A TEMPORARY PERMIT TO CATERERS WITH A VALID 
STATE AND LOCAL LIQUOR LICENSE TO SELL INTOXICATING LIQUOR BY 
THE DRINK, was read on third reading by title by City Clerk/Finance Clerk O’Connor.  
Motion was made by Councilmember Jack and seconded by Councilmember Eddins to pass said 
bill on third reading.  Discussion. No additional information was presented. Bill 2016-3 passed 
by the following roll call vote:  “Aye”:  Councilmembers:  Breckenridge, Clark, Eddins, Jack and 
Rogers.  “Nay” none. The Mayor thereupon declared said bill duly adopted and said bill was 
numbered ORDINANCE 5915, was thereupon signed by the Mayor and attested by the City 
Clerk/Finance Clerk. 


 
Public Hearing and Approval of Engineers Report. Great Northwest Wholesale Water 


Commission.  Motion was made at 6:15 p.m. by Councilmember Jack to go into Public Hearing 
by roll call vote.  Councilmember Eddins seconded the motion.  The motion passed by the 
following roll call vote:  “Aye”:  Councilmembers:  Breckenridge, Clark, Eddins, Jack and 
Rogers.  “Nay” none.   


 
Steve McIntosh, Missouri Department of Natural Resources, presented information on the 


capacity of the City Lakes and the effects a severe drought would have on the water supply.  
• A 1977 – 1988 Drought Task Force was formed and with the 2000 drought they 


decided to look at water systems in the State of Missouri. 
• The City of Cameron was identified as most volatile and the City hired an 


engineer. 
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• There were 40 water systems designated that would need to last 18 months during 
a drought. 


• The City of Cameron had an analysis prepared relating to a water budget of water 
in and out, much like keeping a check book account of ins and outs. 


• In 2001 it was determined the City would run out of water if another drought 
occurred like the 1950 drought since the demand against supply came up short. 


• The City extended the spillway as much as feasible at that time. 
• In 2012 a flash drought caused the Lakes to drop two (2) times faster in 4.5 month 


than nine (9) months of the drought in 1950. 
•  The City of Cameron has an increased water demand that accompanies growth in 


the population. 
• Storage volume in Grindstone has dropped 1.3 percent per year because of 


sedimentation. 
 
City Manager Gaugh explained it is not cost effective to clean sediment from Lakes. 
 


 Mr. McIntosh said engineers looked at alternatives such as removing sediment from the 
Lakes or purchasing water from other communities to ensure the water demand could be met 
during a drought.  The most cost effective plan would be to purchase water from the Great 
Northwest Wholesale Water Commission.   


 
Becky Curtis, 311 Oak Avenue, asked if the proposed pipeline would carry river water.  


Mr. McIntosh replied it would not be river water.  Ms. Curtis asked about using water that has 
been cleaned from the Wastewater Treatment Plant. Ms. Curtis also expressed concerns about 
what the extra cost would be to customers on their monthly bills for water and how the project is 
being financed.   Sid Douglas, an attorney with Gilmore and Bell, stated under state statutes there 
are various methods agencies can use to finance water projects. Bonds can be authorized in 
different ways.  The process being used authorized the Great Northwest Wholesale Water 
Commission to issue bonds.  This requires an ordinance be adopted by three-fourths of all 
participants.  Participating members must authorize the issuance and pay their proportionate 
share of the cost and finance the project separately.  The alternative is for the Commission to 
issue the bonds and own and operate the facility and have the governing bodies of each 
participating members approve the project.  A junior bond issued would pick up expenses that 
will be reimbursed by USDA.  Ed Proctor, attorney for the Great Northwest Wholesale Water 
Commission stated the Bond will pay off in 35 years. The Commission is responsible for the 
bond.  Rates for the bond will be set.  Mr. Proctor said they cannot project water rates 35 years 
out.  


 
Ms. Curtis said the alternative way was used instead of allowing the City to vote on the 


pipeline and water purchase.  The City will be responsible for 86 percent of the cost.  
Councilmember Jack said the City has to make sure water is available.  500,000 gallons a day is 
needed to flush the pipeline.  There is no choice because we have to have the water.  Dredging 
the current Lakes will not work and using recycled water from the Wastewater Treatment plant 
will not provide drinkable water.  
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John Feighert, 202 Golden Eagle Lane, asked why residents were not given the 
opportunity to vote on the City joining the Commission.  Mr. Feighert said citizens voted two (2) 
times against having the pipeline supply water needs.  The cost of the water per month with the 
pipeline was also questioned by Mr. Feighert.  Utility Director Zac Johnson said the estimated 
cost for 5,000 gallons of water is $46.  The number of cities that were involved in GNWWC at 
the beginning was 24.  Mr. Proctor said there are now three (3) cities and those cities would be 
the most effected by an inadequate water supply. 


 
Mr. Feighert asked how many banks were allowed to bid on the bonds.  Mr. Proctor said 


there were four (4) institution that submitted proposals and GNWWC made the decision on the 
bank that would be used. 


 
Motion was made at 7:05 p.m. by Councilmember Rogers to go into Public Hearing by 


roll call vote.  Councilmember Jack seconded the motion.  The motion passed by the following 
roll call vote:  “Aye”:  Councilmembers:  Breckenridge, Clark, Eddins, Jack and Rogers.  “Nay” 
none.   


 
Bill 2016-5, AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF CAMERON, CLINTON AND 


DeKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI APPROVING AN ENGINEER’S REPORT AND 
APPROVING THE ISSUANCE OF REVENUE BONDS BY THE GREAT NORTHWEST 
WHOLESALE WATER COMMISSION, was read by title by City Clerk/Finance Clerk 
O’Connor.  Copies of said Bill 2016-5 were available for the public.  Motion was made by 
Councilmember Jack and seconded by Councilmember Rogers to pass said bill on first reading.  
Discussion. Utility Director Zac Johnson said Bill 2016-5 approves the engineer’s report on the 
economic and engineering feasibility of the water distribution project and issuance of $3,995,000 
in revenue bonds by the Great Northwest Wholesale Water Commission. Motion carried 
unanimously.   


  
Motion was made by Councilmember Jack and seconded by Councilmember Rogers to 


suspend the rules and place said bill on second reading.  Discussion.  None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.   


 
On motion made by Councilmember Jack and seconded by Councilmember Rogers said 


bill was placed on second reading, was read by title and passed by the following roll call vote:  
“Aye”:  Councilmembers:  Breckenridge, Clark, Eddins, Jack and Rogers.  “Nay” none. The 
Mayor thereupon declared said bill duly adopted and said bill was numbered ORDINANCE 
5916, was thereupon signed by the Mayor and attested by the City Clerk/Finance Clerk. 


 
Update on Pound Facility.  Community Development Director Tim Hamilton gave an 


update on the proposed animal shelter facility.  Bids were solicited and came in high so the 
project is being bid once again.  The current facility located at 521 South Elm Street has 
numerous issues that would not be cost effective to repair. Staff has discussed various locations 
to relocate the facility. One location near the City Wastewater Treatment Plant which would 
require a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) be issued.   The CUP request would go before the 
Cameron Planning and Zoning Commission in March for a recommendation.  The bid process 
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closes February 29, 2016.  Community Development Director Hamilton will continue to inform 
Council of the progress on the project. 


 
 


NEW BUSINESS 
 
Resolution 2016-1, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CAMERON 


MISSOURI POLICE DEPARTMENT TO APPLY FOR A 100% NON-MATCHING 
GRANT FROM THE MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION TO 
PARTICIPATE IN MISSOURI’S HIGHWAY SAFETY PROGRAM  FOR 2017, was read 
by title by City Clerk/Finance Clerk O'Connor.  Copies of said Resolution 2016-1 were available 
for the public.  Motion was made by Councilmember Eddins and seconded by Councilmember 
Rogers to pass Resolution 2016-1.  Discussion.  Police Chief Rick Bashor asked Council 
permission to apply for a 100 percent non-matching grant from The Missouri Department of 
Transportation to fund $9,000 of overtime for off-duty Police Officers and to purchase 
fluorescent protective vests and rain jackets.  Resolution 2016-1 passed with a unanimous voice 
vote. 


 
 
Resolution 2016-2, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF CAMERON, CLINTON 


AND DeKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI, IN SUPPORT OF FUTURE IMPROVEMENT 
STRATEGIES FOR THE I-35/ HIGHWAY 36, INTERCHANGE, AND THE 
INTERSECTION OF 36 HIGHWAY AT BOB F. GRIFFIN ROAD, was read by title by 
City Clerk/Finance Clerk O'Connor.  Copies of said Resolution 2016-2 were available for the 
public.  Motion was made by Councilmember Jack and seconded by Councilmember Rogers to 
pass Resolution 2016-2.  Discussion.  Planning and Zoning Chair Mike O’Donnell asked for 
Council support by way of Resolution 2016-2 for future improvement strategies at US 36 and 
Interstate 35; and, at US 36 and Bob F. Griffin Road Intersection.   The improvements suggested 
have made the Missouri Department of Transportation Project List.  Chair O’Donnell said 
inserting the plan in the City of Cameron Comprehensive Plan is important and recommended 
approval.  Resolution 2016-2 passed with a unanimous voice vote. 


 
Resolution 2016-3, A RESOLUTION FOR THE CITY OF CAMERON, CLINTON 


AND DeKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI ACCEPTING THE BID FOR A SPRAY 
INJECTION PATCHING TRAILER MACHINE FROM DURACO, INC., was read by title 
by City Clerk/Finance Clerk O'Connor.  Copies of said Resolution 2016-3 were available for the 
public.  Motion was made by Councilmember Rogers and seconded by Councilmember Eddins 
to pass Resolution 2016-3.  Discussion. Public Works Director Drew Bontrager said Staff 
solicited bids for the machine.  Duraco, Inc. submitted the best and lowest bid of $48,315. The 
2015-2016 Budget has $65,000 budgeted for a patching machine.  Staff recommends approval.  
Resolution 2016-3 passed with a unanimous voice vote. 


 
Bill 2016-6, AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN 


AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF CAMERON, CLINTON AND DeKALB 
COUNTIES, MISSOURI AND THE MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL 
RESOURCES, MISSOURI STATE PARKS, FOR A RECREATIONAL TRAILS 
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PROGRAM PROJECT AGREEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION & EXPANSION OF 
THE CAMERON RESERVOIR MULTI-USE TRAIL, was read by title by City 
Clerk/Finance Clerk O’Connor.  Copies of said Bill 2016-6 were available for the public.  
Motion was made by Councilmember Jack and seconded by Councilmember Rogers to pass said 
bill on first reading.  Discussion.  Public Works Director Bontrager said Bill 2016-6 authorizes a 
Recreational Trails Program Project Agreement in the amount of $191,180.  The project scope 
includes construction of approximately .46 miles of eight (8) foot wide asphalt/concreate and six 
(6) foot wide wood chip trail around a portion of Sunrise Lake. There is a minimum 20 percent 
match from the City.  A large portion of the project includes a construction of a 90 foot steel 
clear span pedestrian bridge. A new trailhead and ADA parking area with restroom 
improvements are also included in the project. Councilmember Breckenridge asked about funds 
to maintain and take care of the improvements.  Director Bontrager said existing Staff and 
equipment would be utilized for maintenance.   Councilmember Eddins also questioned spending 
money on the trail versus other needs.  Mayor Clark and Councilmember Jack both spoke in 
favor of the project.  Work by City Staff will comprise most of the City matching requirements.  
Motion carried with Councilmembers Clark, Jack and Rogers voting “Aye”.  Councilmembers 
Breckenridge and Eddins voted “Nay”. 


  
Motion was made by Councilmember Jack and seconded by Councilmember Rogers to 


suspend the rules and place said bill on second reading.  Discussion.  None.  Motion carried with 
Councilmembers Clark, Jack and Rogers voting “Aye”.  Councilmembers Breckenridge and 
Eddins voted “Nay”. 


 
On motion made by Councilmember Jack and seconded by Councilmember Rogers said 


bill was placed on second reading, was read by title and passed by the following roll call vote:  
“Aye”:  Councilmembers:  Clark, Jack and Rogers.  “Nay” Breckenridge and Eddins. The Mayor 
thereupon declared said bill duly adopted and said bill was numbered ORDINANCE 5917, was 
thereupon signed by the Mayor and attested by the City Clerk/Finance Clerk. 


 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 


 
John Feighert, 202 Golden Eagle Lane, said a priority for the City should be to fix the 


streets and sewers and not spend money on trails. 
 


MISCELLANEOUS 
 
Mayor Clark stated streets have be neglected for a number of years due to poor planning. 


Street repairs cannot be completed over night.  Cameron needs growth and an improved plan for 
sales tax for the future. 


 
There being no further business on motion made by Councilmember Jack and seconded 


by Councilmember Eddins, the meeting was adjourned at 7:55 p.m. on a unanimous voice vote. 
 
        APPROVED: 
 


                                                                  _______________________________ 
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        Mayor Dennis M. Clark 
ATTEST: 


 
 


_____________________________________ 
City Clerk/Finance Clerk 
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Hochschild, Bloom & Company LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
Consultants and Advisors 


INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 


February 5,2016 


Honorable Mayor and City Council 
CITY OF CAMERON, MISSOURI 


REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business­
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the CITY OF 
CAMERON, MISSOURI (the City) as of and for the year ended September 30,2015, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as 
listed in the table of contents. 


Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 


Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in ac­
cordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 


Auditor's Responsibility 


Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We con­
ducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Amer­
ica and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material mis­
statement. 


o 15450 South Outer Forty Road, Suite 135, Chesterfield, Missouri 63017-2066,636-532-9525, Fax 636-532-9055 
o 1000 Washington Square, P. O. Box 1457, Washington, Missouri 63090-8457, 636-239-4785, Fax 636-239-5448 
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the as-
sessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s 
internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the ap-
propriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 
 
Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the re-
spective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of September 30, 2015, and the respective 
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in ac-
cordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplemental Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis and required supplemental information, as listed in the table of contents, be pre-
sented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to 
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate op-
erational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplemental information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited proce-
dures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collec-
tively comprise the City’s basic financial statements.  The other supplemental information, as listed in 
the table of contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the 
basic financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from 
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
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with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the other 
supplemental information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial state-
ments as a whole. 
 
OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated February 5, 
2016, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other mat-
ters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in ac-
cordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
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The City of Cameron, Missouri (the City) presents this narrative to help readers review the accompanying an-
nual financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2015.  We have prepared the management’s discus-
sion and analysis (MD&A) of the City’s financial activities to add additional information to the financial 
schedules and the note disclosures.   
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 


 The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources at the end of the fiscal year by $45,201,105 (net position).  Net position is comprised of 
$28,446,562 net investment in capital assets; $3,440,372 restricted for debt service and other purposes; 
$3,550,496 unrestricted and available for governmental purposes; and $9,763,675 unrestricted and avail-
able for the City’s business-type activities. 


 
 The City’s total net position increased $2,544,974.  Of this amount, $1,887,186 was an increase from the 


City’s governmental activities and $657,788 was an increase from business-type activities. 
 


 The City’s long-term debt increased $4,531,296 during the current fiscal year.  The Water/Wastewater 
Fund issued $5,075,000 in certificates of participation, while regular principal payments were made on 
other debt issues. 
 


 The City was awarded by the Missouri Department of Transportation two transportation enhancement 
grants for N. Walnut Street.  One is pedestrian access over U.S. Highway 36 and the other is pedestrian 
sidewalks from Grand Avenue to U.S. Highway 36.  The grants were awarded in fiscal year 2012 - 2013, 
final design approved fiscal year 2014 - 2015 with construction to commence fiscal year 2015 - 2016. 
 


 The City issued new debt on October 1, 2014:  the 2014 Water and Wastewater Improvement Certifi-
cates of Participation was established to finance the automatic metering project for water and electric 
services, and design improvements for wastewater collection and basins.  The automatic metering pro-
ject and the wastewater design phase were not completed as of September 30, 2015.  


 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The MD&A is intended to serve as an introduction the City’s basic financial statements.  The City’s basic fi-
nancial statements consist of three major components:  1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund finan-
cial statements, and 3) notes to financial statements.  This report also contains other supplemental information, 
the budgetary comparisons, to provide additional information that readers can use to analyze the City’s fi-
nances. 
 
Government-wide financial statements.  The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide 
readers with an overview of the City’s finances, presenting all funds in a more simplified format.  This section 
is similar to financial reporting used by commercial entities. 
 
The statement of net position presents information on all the City’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, lia-
bilities, and deferred inflows of resources, including long-term debt and capital assets in the governmental 
funds.  The difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of re-
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sources is reported as net position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indi-
cator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the most 
recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as transactions occur, regardless of when the 
related cash flows are reported.  Therefore, some revenues and expenses included in this statement may reflect 
cash flows that actually occur in future periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and accrued vacation leave). 
 
Government-wide statements are separated into two major categories:  1) governmental activities that are prin-
cipally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues and 2) business-type activities that are supported 
with user fees and charges.  Governmental activities include general government, public safety, public works, 
parks and recreation, public library, municipal band, and economic development.  Business-type activities in-
clude electric, water and wastewater, and solid waste. 
 
Fund financial statements.  Funds are used in government accounting to separate resources that are designated 
for specific programs or activities.  The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to 
demonstrate compliance with the laws, regulations, and contractual agreements that establish the authority for 
the City’s programs and services.  The City has three types of funds:  governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary 
funds. 
 
Governmental funds.  Governmental funds are used to account for the City’s basic services, the same services 
that are included in the governmental activities on the government-wide statements.  However, the information 
in the fund statements is measured differently.  Governmental funds focus on current financial resources rather 
than economic resources.  Therefore, the statements include the short-term resources, such as cash, investments, 
and receivables that will be collected within 60 days and liabilities that will be retired with these monies.  This 
information is important for assessing the City’s current financial resources. 
 
The reconciliation in the fund statements explains the difference between the governmental funds in the fund 
statements and the governmental activities found in the government-wide financial statements.  This reconcilia-
tion will explain the adjustments necessary to compile the long-term resources and liabilities for the govern-
ment-wide statements with the current picture presented in the fund statements. 
 
The City uses the following governmental funds: 
 
 Major Funds Nonmajor Funds 
 


 General  Parks and Recreation 
 Stormwater Improvement  Public Library 
 Transportation Improvement  Municipal Band 
  Low-Income Housing 


  TIF Special Allocation 
 
The larger funds are presented as major funds while the other funds are presented in the combining statements 
for nonmajor funds.  Both major and nonmajor fund statements include a balance sheet and statement of reve-
nues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances. 
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The budgetary comparison for the General, Stormwater Improvements, and Transportation Improvement Funds 
are included with the required supplemental information.  Budgetary comparisons for all other funds are pre-
sented with other supplemental information.  The only exception is the Low-Income Housing Fund, which is 
not budgeted by the City. 
 
Proprietary funds.  The City maintains three different types of proprietary funds.  Enterprise Funds are used to 
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.  
The City uses Enterprise Funds to account for its electric, water and wastewater, and solid waste operations.  
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in 
more detail.  The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Electric Fund, Wa-
ter/Wastewater Fund, and Solid Waste Fund. 
 
Fiduciary funds.  The fiduciary fund is used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the 
City for court appearance bonds.  The fiduciary fund is not reflected in the government-wide financial state-
ments because the City cannot use these assets to finance its operations.  The accounting used for the fiduciary 
fund is much like that used for proprietary funds. 
 
Notes to financial statements.  Notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of 
the information included in the financial schedules.  Notes provide additional details about the balances and 
transactions in the City’s financial statements. 
 
Supplemental information.  In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, certain re-
quired and other supplemental information can be found after the basic financial statements. 
 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
The first statement in the government-wide statements is the statement of net position.  The following table 
summarizes the statement of net position for the governmental activities and business-type activities as of Sep-
tember 30, 2015 and 2014: 
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Restated Restated Restated
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014


ASSETS
Current and other assets 5,995,319$   5,687,375     14,066,712 11,837,845 20,062,031 17,525,220 
Capital assets, net 15,294,924   15,278,522   22,103,996 19,292,394 37,398,920 34,570,916 


Total Assets 21,290,243   20,965,897   36,170,708 31,130,239 57,460,951 52,096,136 


DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
   OF RESOURCES 450,049        54,232          240,480      46,644        690,529      100,876      


LIABILITIES
Current and other
   liabilities 183,423        1,205,249     1,369,906   1,515,737   1,553,329   2,720,986   
Long-term liabilities 3,057,604     3,225,232     8,293,589   3,594,663   11,351,193 6,819,895   


Total Liabilities 3,241,027     4,430,481     9,663,495   5,110,400   12,904,522 9,540,881   


DEFERRED INFLOWS
   OF RESOURCES 22,431          -               23,422        -             45,853        -             


NET POSITION
Net investment in capital
   assets 12,366,925   12,605,970   16,079,637 15,828,620 28,446,562 28,434,590 
Restricted 2,582,369     1,807,510     880,959      815,884      3,463,328   2,623,394   
Unrestricted 3,527,540     2,176,168     9,763,675   9,421,979   13,291,215 11,598,147 


Total Net
   Position 18,476,834$ 16,589,648   26,724,271 26,066,483 45,201,105 42,656,131 


September 30


Total
Governmental


Activities
Business-type


Activities


 
The statement of net position is an accrual based financial statement.  The statement of net position presents the 
same information as a balance sheet; it assesses the balance of the City’s assets, the resources it can use to pro-
vide service and operate, against its liabilities, its obligations to turn over resources to other organizations or 
individuals.  The difference between the City’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and its de-
ferred inflows of resources is called net position.  In other words, this statement quantifies what the City would 
have remaining after satisfying its liabilities.  The bulk of net position is comprised of capital assets which are 
not liquid assets. 
 
During the year ended September 30, 2015, the City adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement (GASB) No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions – an Amendment of GASB State-
ment No. 27, which resulted in pension related assets, deferred outflows, and deferred inflows.  In addition, the 
implementation included a restatement of the prior year’s net position. 
 
Assets include $10,594,644 in unrestricted cash and investments and $3,816,785 in restricted cash and invest-
ments.  Total net position increased by $2,544,974. 
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The second statement in the government-wide statements is the statement of activities.  This statement outlines 
the City’s primary programs or governmental activities and business-type activities.  The following table out-
lines the major components of the statement of activities for the years ended September 30, 2015 and 2014: 
 


2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
REVENUES


Program revenues:
    Charges for services 523,880$      869,182      11,821,124 11,413,019 12,345,004 12,282,201 
    Operating grants and 
       contributions 441,870        21,365        19,428        10,922        461,298      32,287        
    Capital grants and 
       contributions 163,853        762,411      -             307,032      163,853      1,069,443   
General revenues:
    Taxes 4,543,241     3,871,076   493,580      496,923      5,036,821   4,367,999   
    Other 439,979        354,144      64,455        79,390        504,434      433,534      
Transfers 16,313          -             (16,313)      -             -             -             


Total Revenues 6,129,136     5,878,178   12,382,274 12,307,286 18,511,410 18,185,464 


EXPENSES
General government 224,664        579,484      -             -             224,664      579,484      
Public safety 2,074,485     1,973,884   -             -             2,074,485   1,973,884   
Public works 1,236,036     757,429      -             -             1,236,036   757,429      
Parks and recreation 312,401        254,394      -             -             312,401      254,394      
Public library 167,214        158,469      -             -             167,214      158,469      
Municipal band 62,549          55,956        -             -             62,549        55,956        
Economic development 55,764          -             -             -             55,764        -             
Interest on long-term debt 108,837        170,798      -             -             108,837      170,798      
Electric -               -             7,705,839   7,640,936   7,705,839   7,640,936   
Water and wastewater -               -             3,683,588   3,364,273   3,683,588   3,364,273   
Solid waste -               -             335,059      335,244      335,059      335,244      


Total Expenses 4,241,950     3,950,414   11,724,486 11,340,453 15,966,436 15,290,867 


CHANGE IN NET POSITION 1,887,186     1,927,764   657,788      966,833      2,544,974   2,894,597   


NET POSITION, OCTOBER 1 16,589,648   13,987,971 26,066,483 24,254,748 42,656,131 38,242,719 


RESTATEMENT -               673,913   -             844,902   -             1,518,815   


NET POSITION, SEPTEM-
   BER 30 18,476,834$ 16,589,648 26,724,271 26,066,483 45,201,105 42,656,131 


September 30


Total
Business-type


Activities
Governmental


Activities


 
Revenues and expenses are presented by major function or program.  The City, like all cities, depends on tax 
revenues to provide funding for governmental services and activities. 
 
Total revenues increased by $325,946.  Governmental activities revenues increased $250,958 mainly due to an 
agreement with CNH America LLC.  In 2006, DeKalb County issued chapter 100 revenue bonds and as a part 
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of the agreement the City was to be reimbursed $600,000.  Business-type activities revenues increased $74,988.  
Charges for services increased $408,105 due to a rate increase in the Water/Wastewater Fund.  Capital grants 
decreased $307,032 from a grant that was received last year.  Total expenses increased $675,569.  Governmen-
tal activities expenses increased $291,536, and business-type activities increased $384,033. 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS 
 
As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. 
 
Governmental funds.  The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term in-
flows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financ-
ing requirements.  In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the City’s net re-
sources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.   
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of 
$5,129,566, an increase of $1,703,372 in comparison with the prior year. 
 
The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City.  At the end of the current fiscal year, the unassigned 
fund balance of the General Fund was $2,072,585, while total fund balance reached $2,575,107.  As a measure 
of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund bal-
ance to total fund expenditures.  Unassigned fund balance represents 57% of total General Fund expenditures, 
while total fund balance represents 71% of that same amount.  The fund balance of the General Fund increased 
by $1,183,319 during the current fiscal year.  This increase is due to an increase in revenues and a decrease in 
expenditures.  
 
The Stormwater Improvement fund balance decreased $49,774 during the fiscal year to $292,425 due to normal 
activities of the fund. 
 
The Transportation Improvement fund balance increased $548,063 during the fiscal year to $1,835,752 due to 
reduced capital outlay projects in the current year. 
 
Changes in net position for the major proprietary funds can be described as follows: 
 
 The Electric Fund increased by $188,561.  At September 30, 2015, total net position was $10,265,684. 


 
 The Water and Wastewater Fund increased by $475,871 to $16,184,937 as a result of an increase in water 


and sewer rates charged to customers. 
 


 The Solid Waste Fund decreased by $6,644 to a net position of $273,650. 
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GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 
 
Difference between the original and the final approved budget can be summarized as follows: 
 


 The Multi Use Trails at the reservoir was included in the General Fund budget.  This project’s construc-
tion phase was completed in fiscal year 2014 - 2015, with grant funds received and final projects distrib-
uted, in fiscal year 2014 - 2015. 


 
 Professional services that are required for City issues are growing for the General Fund.  Professional 


service adjustments were included in three of the four budget adjustments. 
 
 The City filled the previously empty positions Assistant City Manager and Utilities Director in        


March 2015 and the position of Development Director in June 2015, the costs associated with these po-
sitions was not included in the original 2015 budget. 


 
 A City-wide administrative expense that continues to grow with our increased technology enhancements 


is the fees associated with the processing of credit and debit cards.  The usage of this payment medium 
is growing and very convenient for our citizens.  Usage of the City’s online utility payment system is in-
creasing exponentially.  Staff is continuing to find avenues in which to lower these costs but continue 
customer service for our citizens.   


 
 
CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
This year’s major capital asset activity for governmental activities includes: 
 


 Fire department was able to update emergency equipment by obtaining extrication equipment.   
 Public Works department purchased a dump truck to assist with small maintenance street duties.   
 Police department purchased an all-wheel drive K-9 vehicle. 
 The Parks and Recreation Fund enhanced the winter activities for Recreation Park by purchasing a re-


movable ice rink.  The ice rink is used only in winter at the sand volleyball location.  Additional con-
crete was also installed in this area of Recreation Park, as a permanent improvement.   
  


This year’s major capital asset activity for business-type activities includes: 
 


 Installation of the automated meter reading system for both electric and water systems began in fiscal 
year 2015 and was not fully operational as of September 30, 2015. 


 Electric department purchased bucket truck. 
 Water plant improvements included a generator being installed for emergency services. 
 Fencing was improved around part of the City reservoirs. 
 Water plant north basin improvements were completed in the fall of 2015. 
 Sewer system continued design work on the collection and treatment improvements that are planned.  


These improvements are being required to meet state regulations. 
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The following table summarizes the capital assets, net of depreciation, for the governmental and business-type 
activities as of September 30, 2015 and 2014: 
 


2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014


Land 3,066,624$   3,066,624   1,142,255   867,606      4,208,879   3,934,230   
Construction in progress 601,845        580,290      3,297,804   153,166      3,899,649   733,456      
Buildings 2,583,071     2,694,229   14,010,516 14,536,229 16,593,587 17,230,458 
Improvements 1,296,807     937,674      2,669,513   2,766,999   3,966,320   3,704,673   
Equipment 866,242        927,154      983,908      968,394      1,850,150   1,895,548   
Publications 92,866          96,360        -             -             92,866        96,360        
Infrastructure 6,787,469     6,976,191   -             -             6,787,469   6,976,191   


Total 15,294,924$ 15,278,522 22,103,996 19,292,394 37,398,920 34,570,916 


September 30


Total
Governmental Business-type


Activities Activities


 
Additional information on capital assets can be found in Note C of the financial statements. 
 
LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
The following table summarizes the City’s scheduled long-term outstanding debt for the governmental activi-
ties and business-type activities as of September 30, 2015 and 2014: 
 


2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014


Certificates of participation 2,870,000$   3,015,000   5,148,924   -             8,018,924   3,015,000   
Revenue bonds -               -             2,894,000   3,315,455   2,894,000   3,315,455   
Capital leases payable 57,999          79,670        -             -             57,999        79,670        
Note payable -               -             91,984        148,321      91,984        148,321      
Compensated absences 129,605        130,562      158,681      130,889      288,286      261,451      


Total 3,057,604$   3,225,232   8,293,589   3,594,665   11,351,193 6,819,897   


September 30


Total
Governmental Business-type


Activities Activities


The City issued $5,075,000 of certificates of participation during the current fiscal year for improvements to the 
water and sewer system.  
 
Additional information on long-term debt can be found in Note D of the financial statements. 
 
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET 
 
The City Council continues to strive for long-term sustainable improvements to the community.  The areas of 
interest for the City Council:  infrastructure, beautification, quality of life, and community resources.  
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Taxes and charges for services are the main sources of revenue for the City.  Personnel expenditures require the 
greatest usage of resources.  These factors were considered in preparing the City’s 2016 budget. 
 
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 
 
The MD&A is designed to provide a general overview of the information contained in the financial report and 
the City’s finances in general.  Questions concerning any of the information contained in the MD&A or in the 
body of the financial report should be addressed to:  Mark Gaugh, City Manager, City of Cameron, 205 N 
Main, Cameron, Missouri 64429. 







CITY OF CAMERON, MISSOURI
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION


______________________________________________________________________________________________________SEPTEMBER 30, 2015


Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total


ASSETS 
Cash and investments 4,204,761$      6,389,883       10,594,644     
Receivables, net:


Sales tax 356,584        94,577             451,161          
Property tax 51,229          -                  51,229            
Intergovernmental 195,689        -                  195,689          
Gross receipts tax 73,666          -                  73,666            
Utilities 70,181          6,111               76,292            
Accounts 52,273          1,628,020       1,680,293       
Interest 455               3,359               3,814              
Other 400,000        -                  400,000          


Due from other governments -                62,636             62,636            
Internal balances (535,387)      535,387           -                  
Prepaid items 111,625        89,500             201,125          
Inventory -                1,192,767       1,192,767       
Restricted cash and investments 349,423        3,467,362       3,816,785       
Special assessments, net -                9,962           9,962              
Net pension asset 564,344            587,148           1,151,492       
Land held for resale 100,476        -                  100,476          
Capital assets:


Land and construction in progress 3,668,469     4,440,059    8,108,528       
Other capital assets, net of accumulated
   depreciation 11,626,455   17,663,937     29,290,392     


Total Assets 21,290,243      36,170,708     57,460,951     


DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows - pension related 450,049            240,480           690,529          


LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 132,392            856,771           989,163          
Accrued interest payable 51,031 37,281             88,312            
Customer deposits payable -                   475,854           475,854          
Noncurrent liabilities:


Due within one year 324,202 823,465           1,147,667       
Due in more than one year 2,733,402 7,470,124       10,203,526     


Total Liabilities 3,241,027         9,663,495       12,904,522     


DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows - pension related 22,431              23,422             45,853            


NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 12,366,925      16,079,637     28,446,562     
Restricted for:


Debt service 349,423            880,959           1,230,382       
Transportation improvements 1,783,708         -                  1,783,708       
Parks and recreation 240,691            -                  240,691          
Public library 31,550              -                  31,550            
Municipal band 170,909            -                  170,909          
Low-income housing 781                   -                  781                 
TIF special allocation 5,307                -                  5,307              


Unrestricted 3,527,540         9,763,675       13,291,215     
 


Total Net Position 18,476,834$    26,724,271     45,201,105     


See notes to financial statements______________________________________________________________________________________________
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Primary Government







CITY OF CAMERON, MISSOURI
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES


_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015


Charges
For


FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS Expenses Services Total
Primary Government


Governmental Activities
General government 224,664$       121,499       18,462       -            (84,703)           -               (84,703)          
Public safety 2,074,485      287,809       2,570         6,335         (1,777,771)      -               (1,777,771)     
Public works 1,236,036      112,365       403,190     157,518    (562,963)         -               (562,963)        
Parks and recreation 312,401         2,207           1,031         -            (309,163)         -               (309,163)        
Public library 167,214         -               16,367       -            (150,847)         -               (150,847)        
Municipal band 62,549            -               250            -            (62,299)           -               (62,299)          
Economic development 55,764 -               -             -            (55,764)           -               (55,764)          
Interest on long-term debt 108,837         -               -             -            (108,837)         -               (108,837)        


Total Governmental Activities 4,241,950      523,880       441,870     163,853    (3,112,347)      -               (3,112,347)     


Business-type Activities
Electric 7,705,839      7,884,455    -             -            -                  178,616       178,616         
Water and wastewater 3,683,588      3,627,814    317            -            -                  (55,457)        (55,457)          
Solid waste 335,059         308,855       19,111       -            -                  (7,093)          (7,093)            


Total Business-type Activities 11,724,486    11,821,124  19,428       -            -                  116,066       116,066         
Total Primary Government 15,966,436$  12,345,004  461,298     163,853    (3,112,347)      116,066       (2,996,281)     


General Revenues
Taxes:


Property 715,032           -               715,032         
Sales 2,464,954       493,580       2,958,534      
Utility 1,016,640       -               1,016,640      
Other local tax 346,615           -               346,615         


In lieu of tax 352,578 -               352,578         
Investment income 23,505             64,455         87,960           
Other 63,896             -               63,896           


Transfers 16,313             (16,313)        -                 
Total General Revenues And Transfers 4,999,533       541,722       5,541,255      


CHANGE IN NET POSITION 1,887,186       657,788       2,544,974      


NET POSITION, OCTOBER 1, AS RESTATED 16,589,648  26,066,483  42,656,131    


NET POSITION, SEPTEMBER 30 18,476,834$   26,724,271  45,201,105    


See notes to financial statements_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
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CITY OF CAMERON, MISSOURI
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS


__________________________________________________________________________________________________SEPTEMBER 30, 2015


Total
Governmental


General Funds
ASSETS 


Cash and investments 1,936,022$   -         1,688,860  579,879   4,204,761      
Receivables, net:


Sales tax 190,507 47,424   94,848       23,805     356,584         
Property tax 30,738 -         -            20,491     51,229           
Intergovernmental 186,241        -         -            9,448       195,689         
Gross receipts tax 73,666 -         -            -           73,666           
Grants 70,181          -     -            -           70,181           
Accounts 52,273          -     -            -           52,273           
Interest 323               -     -            132          455                
Other 400,000        -     -            -           400,000         


Due from other funds 57,010 -     -            -           57,010           
Restricted cash and investments -                297,379 52,044       -           349,423         
Land held for resale 100,476        -     -            -           100,476         


Total Assets 3,097,437$   344,803 1,835,752  633,755   5,911,747      


LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 67,282$        2,776     -            62,334     132,392         
Due to other funds 420,612        49,602   -            122,183   592,397         


Total Liabilities 487,894        52,378   -            184,517   724,789         


DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues - property taxes 34,436          -         -            22,956     57,392           


FUND BALANCES 
Nonspendable:


Long-term receivable 200,000        -         -            -           200,000         
Land held for resale 100,476        -         -            -           100,476         


Restricted for:
Debt service -                297,379 52,044       -           349,423         
Transportation improvements -                -         1,783,708  -           1,783,708      
Parks and recreation -                -         -            232,235   232,235         
Public library -                -         -            21,832     21,832           
Municipal band -                -         -            166,127   166,127         
Low-income housing -                -         -            781          781                
TIF special allocation -                -         -            5,307       5,307             


Committed for:
Capital outlay 16,313          -         -            -           16,313           


Assigned for:
Subsequent year's budget -
  appropriation of fund balance 185,733        -         -            -           185,733         


Unassigned 2,072,585     (4,954)    -            -           2,067,631      
Total Fund Balances 2,575,107     292,425 1,835,752  426,282   5,129,566      


Total Liabilities, Deferred 
   Inflows Of Resources,
   And Fund Balances 3,097,437$   344,803 1,835,752  633,755   5,911,747      


See notes to financial statements___________________________________________________________________________________________
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CITY OF CAMERON, MISSOURI
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL


FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
______________________________________________________________________SEPTEMBER 30, 2015


Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 5,129,566$      


Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different
   because:


Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,
   are not reported in the governmental funds.  The cost of the assets is $35,390,037
   and the accumulated depreciation is $20,095,113. 15,294,924      


Prepaid insurance is reported as an expenditure in the governmental funds but the
   unused economic benefit is reflected as an asset in the statement of net position. 111,625           


Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and, 
   therefore, are unavailable in the governmental funds. 57,392             


Certain amounts are not a use of financial resources and, therefore, are not reported
   in the governmental funds.  These items consist of:


Net pension asset 564,344           
Deferred outflows - pension related 450,049           
Deferred inflows - pension related (22,431)           


Certain long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
   are not reported as liabilities in the governmental funds.  Long-term liabilities at year-
   end consist of:


Accrued interest payable (51,031)           
Accrued compensated absences (129,605)         
Certificates of participation outstanding (2,870,000)      
Capital leases outstanding (57,999)           


Total Net Position Of Governmental Activities 18,476,834$    


See notes to financial statements_______________________________________________________________
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CITY OF CAMERON, MISSOURI
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN


 FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
____________________________________________________________________________FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015


Stormwater Transportation
General Improvement Improvement


REVENUES
Sales tax 1,315,339$    328,403       656,804        164,408    2,464,954     
Property tax 429,812         -              -                290,752    720,564        
Other local taxes 196,080         -              -                150,535    346,615        
Intergovernmental 396,996         -              -                -           396,996        
Gross receipts tax 1,016,640      -              -                -           1,016,640     
In lieu of tax 540,647         -              -                -           540,647        
Licenses and permits 56,850           -              -                -           56,850          
Charges for services 357,284         -              -                2,207        359,491        
Grants and contributions 270,485         -              -                34,648      305,133        
Fines and forfeitures 121,921         -              -                -           121,921        
Investment income 16,833           144              4,932            1,596        23,505          
Other 43,694           16,863         -                10,303      70,860          


Total Revenues 4,762,581      345,410       661,736        654,449    6,424,176     


EXPENDITURES
Current:


General government 337,664         -              -                -           337,664        
Public safety 1,904,348      -              -                -           1,904,348     
Public works 737,002         -              -                -           737,002        
Parks and recreation -                -              -                243,029    243,029        
Public library -                -              -                159,903    159,903        
Municipal band -                -              -                62,600      62,600          
Economic development -                -              -                55,764      55,764          


Capital outlay 590,145         200,589       56,291          111,389    958,414        
Debt service:


Principal 48,513           100,000       45,000          -           193,513        
Interest 4,745             94,595         12,382          -           111,722        


Total Expenditures 3,622,417      395,184       113,673        632,685    4,763,959     


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPEN-
   DITURES 1,140,164      (49,774)       548,063        21,764      1,660,217     


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Issuance of capital lease 26,842           -              -                -           26,842          
Transfers in 16,313           -              -                -           16,313          


Total Other Financing Sources 43,155           -              -                -           43,155          


NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 1,183,319      (49,774)       548,063        21,764      1,703,372     


FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1, AS RESTATED 1,391,788      342,199       1,287,689     404,518    3,426,194     


FUND BALANCES, SEPTEMBER 30 2,575,107$    292,425       1,835,752     426,282    5,129,566     


See notes to financial statements___________________________________________________________________________________________
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CITY OF CAMERON, MISSOURI
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF


GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
______________________________________________________________FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015


Net Change In Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 1,703,372$    


Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:


Capital outlays are reported in the governmental funds as expenditures.  However, in the
   statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives
   and reported as depreciation expense.  This is the amount by which capital outlays over the   
   capitalization threshold ($837,257) exceeded depreciation ($820,855) in 
   the current period. 16,402           


Governmental funds report expenditures for insurance and similar services extending over 
more than one accounting period as expenditures in the period of acquisition:


Prepaid insurance 8,977             


Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not
   reported as revenues in the governmental funds.


Unavailable revenues (311,353)       


The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, notes) provides current financial resources to the
   governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the
   current financial resources of the governmental funds.  Neither transaction, however, has
   any effect on net position.  Also, the governmental funds report the effect of premiums,
   discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred
   and amortized in the statement of activities.  This amount is the net effect of these differ-
   ences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.


Issuance:
Capital lease obligations (26,842)         


Repayments:
Capital lease payments 48,513           
Certificates of participation 145,000         


Net Adjustment


Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current fi-
   nancial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental
   funds:


Accrued compensated absences 957                
Accrued interest 3,069             
Net pension asset (74,295)         
Deferred outflows - pension related 395,817         
Deferred inflows - pension related (22,431)         


Net Adjustment


Change In Net Position Of Governmental Activities 1,887,186$    


See notes to financial statements_____________________________________________________________________________
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CITY OF CAMERON, MISSOURI
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS


_________________________________________________________________________________________________________SEPTEMBER 30, 2015


Water/ Solid
Electric Wastewater Waste Total


ASSETS 


Current Assets
Cash and investments 4,934,098$   1,262,894    192,891    6,389,883    
Receivables, net:


Sales tax -                94,577         -            94,577         
Grants -                -               6,111        6,111           
Utilities 1,119,653     468,823       39,544      1,628,020    
Interest 2,833            445              81             3,359           


Due from other governments 62,636          -               -            62,636         
Due from other funds 224,575        1,722,376    -            1,946,951    
Prepaid items 36,774          52,048         678           89,500         
Inventory 617,255        575,512       -            1,192,767    


Total Current Assets 6,997,824     4,176,675    239,305    11,413,804  


Noncurrent Assets
Capital assets:


Land and construction in progress 1,454,105     2,939,249    46,705      4,440,059    
Other capital assets, net of 
   accumulated depreciation 3,382,012     14,278,949  2,976        17,663,937  


Total Capital Assets 4,836,117     17,218,198  49,681      22,103,996  
Net pension asset 305,034        271,449       10,665      587,148       
Restricted cash and investments 320,712        3,146,650    -            3,467,362    
Special assessments, net 9,962            -               -            9,962           


Total Noncurrent Assets 5,471,825     20,636,297  60,346      26,168,468  
Total Assets 12,469,649   24,812,972  299,651    37,582,272  


DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows - pension related 124,812        111,347       4,321        240,480       


LIABILITIES


Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 500,773        326,102       29,896      856,771       
Customer deposits payable 320,712        155,142       -            475,854       
Compensated absences 83,560          75,121         -            158,681       
Accrued interest payable -                37,281         -            37,281         
Due to other funds 1,411,564     -               -            1,411,564    
Debt payable - current -                572,800       -            572,800       
Notes payable - current -                91,984         -            91,984         


Total Current Liabilities 2,316,609     1,258,430    29,896      3,604,935    


Noncurrent Liabilities
Debt payable -                7,470,124    -            7,470,124    


Total Liabilities 2,316,609     8,728,554    29,896      11,075,059  


DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows - pension related 12,168          10,828         426           23,422         


NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 4,836,117     11,193,839  49,681      16,079,637  
Restricted for debt service -                880,959       -            880,959       
Unrestricted 5,429,567     4,110,139    223,969    9,763,675    


Total Net Position 10,265,684$ 16,184,937  273,650    26,724,271  


See notes to financial statements_________________________________________________________________________________________________
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CITY OF CAMERON, MISSOURI
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN


NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
___________________________________________________FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015


Water/ Solid
Electric Wastewater Waste Total


OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services 7,763,475$    3,579,965 308,423 11,651,863   
Other revenue 120,980 47,849 432 169,261        


Total Operating Revenues 7,884,455      3,627,814    308,855   11,821,124   


OPERATING EXPENSES
Production 5,705,220 861,676 -           6,566,896     
Sewer treatment -                 618,046 -           618,046        
Transmission and distribution 874,477 410,183 317,509 1,602,169     
Administration 887,963 674,646 15,000 1,577,609     
Depreciation 238,179 901,089 2,550 1,141,818     


Total Operating Expenses 7,705,839      3,465,640    335,059   11,506,538   


OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 178,616         162,174       (26,204)    314,586        


NONOPERATING REVENUES
   (EXPENSES)


Investment income 15,383 48,623 449 64,455          
Taxes -                 493,580 -           493,580        
Grant revenue -                 317 19,111 19,428          
Bond issue costs -                 (101,152)     -           (101,152)      
Interest expense and fees -                 (116,796)     -           (116,796)      


Total Nonoperating Revenues
   (Expenses) 15,383           324,572       19,560     359,515        


INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBU-
   TIONS AND TRANSFERS 193,999         486,746       (6,644)      674,101        


TRANSFERS
Transfers out (5,438)            (10,875)       -           (16,313)        


CHANGE IN NET POSITION 188,561         475,871       (6,644)      657,788        


NET POSITION, OCTOBER 1, AS
   RESTATED 10,077,123 15,709,066 280,294 26,066,483   


NET POSITION, SEPTEMBER 30 10,265,684$  16,184,937  273,650   26,724,271   


See notes to financial statements__________________________________________________________________
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CITY OF CAMERON, MISSOURI
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS


______________________________________________________________FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015


Water/ Solid
Electric Wastewater Waste Total


INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
   EQUIVALENTS


Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users 7,755,096$   3,519,240    307,208     11,581,544 
Payments to suppliers (6,965,586)    (2,028,088)   (305,183)   (9,298,857)  
Payments to employees (650,454)       (605,399)      (23,739)     (1,279,592)  
Other receipts 120,980        47,849         432            169,261      


Net Cash Provided By (Used In)
   Operating Activities 260,036        933,602       (21,282)     1,172,356   


Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Due from other funds 83,190           (1,722,376)   -             (1,639,186)  
Due to other funds 1,411,564     -               -             1,411,564   
Transfer to other funds (5,438)           (10,875)        -             (16,313)       


Net Cash Provided By (Used In) 
   Noncapital Financing Activities 1,489,316     (1,733,251)   -             (243,935)     


Cash flows from capital and related financing
   activities:


Capital improvements tax received -                496,362       -             496,362      
Capital grants received -                68,649         13,000       81,649        
Purchase of capital assets (1,530,683)    (2,422,737)   -             (3,953,420)  
Principal payments on long-term debt -                (595,230)      -             (595,230)     
Proceeds from long-term debt -                5,266,362    -             5,266,362   
Bond issue costs -                (101,152)      -             (101,152)     
Interest paid on long-term debt -                (108,460)      -             (108,460)     


Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Capital
   And Related Financing Activities (1,530,683)    2,603,794    13,000       1,086,111   


Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment income 14,369           48,616         450            63,435        
Proceeds from sale of investments 4,404,464     911,274       194,993     5,510,731   
Purchase of investments (4,415,690)    (1,351,162)   (191,940)   (5,958,792)  


Net Cash Provided By (Used In) 
   Investing Activities 3,143             (391,272)      3,503         (384,626)     


NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
   EQUIVALENTS 221,812        1,412,873    (4,779)        1,629,906   


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, OCTOBER 1 617,308 1,645,509    5,730         2,268,547   


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, SEPTEMBER 30 839,120$      3,058,382    951            3,898,453   


See notes to financial statements                                                                                                                                       (Continued)
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CITY OF CAMERON, MISSOURI
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS (Continued)


______________________________________________________________FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015


Water/ Solid
Electric Wastewater Waste Total


RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME
   (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED
   IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Operating income (loss) 178,616$      162,174       (26,204)     314,586      
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
   net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:


Depreciation 238,179        901,089       2,550         1,141,818   
(Increase) decrease in:


Utility receivables (36,038)         (74,030)        (1,215)        (111,283)     
Other receivables 153                -               -             153              
Prepaid items 3,901             (12,824)        105            (8,818)         
Inventory (14,409)         (64,014)        -             (78,423)       
Net pension asset 133,668        74,069         3,373         211,110      
Deferred outflows - pension related (99,350)         (90,984)        (3,502)        (193,836)     


Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable (202,290)       4,129           3,185         (194,976)     
Customer deposits payable 27,506           13,305         -             40,811        
Accrued compensated absences 17,932           9,860           -             27,792        
Deferred inflows - pension related 12,168           10,828         426            23,422        


Total Adjustments 81,420           771,428       4,922         857,770      


Net Cash Provided By (Used In)
   Operating Activities 260,036$      933,602       (21,282)     1,172,356   


RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH
   EQUIVALENTS TO SPECIFIC ASSETS ON
   THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION


Cash and investments 4,934,098$   1,262,894    192,891     6,389,883   
Restricted cash and investments 320,712        3,146,650    -             3,467,362   
Less - Investments in certificates of deposit (4,415,690)    (1,020,976)   (191,940)   (5,628,606)  
Less - Investments in guaranteed investment contracts -                (330,186)      -             (330,186)     


Total Cash And Cash Equivalents 839,120$      3,058,382    951            3,898,453   


See notes to financial statements_____________________________________________________________________________
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CITY OF CAMERON, MISSOURI
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - AGENCY FUND


______________________________________________________________________SEPTEMBER 30, 2015


ASSETS
Cash 1,377$         


LIABILITIES
Due to others - court appearance bonds 1,377           


NET POSITION -$             


See notes to financial statements______________________________________________________________
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The CITY OF CAMERON, MISSOURI (the City) was founded in 1854 and incorporated in 1867.  The City 
operates under an elected mayor/council legislative form of government.  The City Manager is the chief admin-
istrative officer of the City.  The City provides services to residents in many areas, including law enforcement, 
fire protection, animal control, electrical, water, wastewater, solid waste, airport services, community enrich-
ment and development, recreation, and various social services.  The financial statements of the City have been 
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) 
as applied to government units.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted stan-
dard-setting body for establishing government accounting and financial reporting principles.  The more signifi-
cant of the City’s accounting policies are described below: 
 
   1. Reporting Entity 
 
  The financial statements of the City include the financial activities of the City and any compo-


nent units, entities which are financially accountable to the City.  Included within the reporting 
entity are all units of government including the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Commission. 


 
  The TIF Commission is a component unit that is governed by an 11 member board, of which 6 of 


the members are appointed by the City Council, and the remaining 5 members are appointed by 
the respective taxing districts’ boards.  The TIF Commission is legally separate from the City but 
has no budget or financial operations.  The City authorized the Commission to exercise all pow-
ers enumerated under the Act, except the final approval of plans, projects, and the designation of 
redevelopment areas.  The TIF Commission is presented as a blended component unit because its 
sole purpose is to finance and construct improvements to the designated redevelopment area. 


 
  Related organizations excluded from the reporting entity:  the City’s officials are also responsi-


ble for appointing the members of the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 
City of Cameron, the Industrial Development Authority of the City of Cameron, one member of 
the ACCD-911 board, and one member to the local hospital board.  The City’s accountability for 
these organizations does not extend beyond making the appointments. 


 
   2. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 
  The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement 


of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government.  
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, 
are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees 
and charges for support.  


 
  The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given func-


tion or segment is offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly identi-
fiable with a specific function or segment.  Program revenues include:  1) charges to customers 
or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided  
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
   2. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 
 
  by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 


operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.  Taxes and other items 
not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 


 
  Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduci-


ary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.  
Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as sepa-
rate columns in the fund financial statements. 


 
   3. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
 
  The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measure-


ment focus and the accrual basis of accounting as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund fi-
nancial statements.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a lia-
bility is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Property taxes are recognized as 
revenues in the year for which they are levied.  Grants and similar items are recognized as reve-
nues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 


 
  Governmental funds financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 


measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as 
soon as they are both measurable and available.  Revenues are considered to be measurable and 
available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay li-
abilities of the current period.  For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if 
they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.  Expenditures generally 
are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.  However, debt service ex-
penditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences, claims, and judgments, are 
recorded only when payment is due (i.e., matured).  


 
  Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are 


all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current 
fiscal period.  All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when 
cash is received by the City.  


 
  The City reports the following major governmental funds: 
 
  General Fund -- This fund is the primary operating fund of the City.  It is used to account for all 


financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
 
  Stormwater Improvement Fund -- This fund is used to account for the proceeds and interest 


earnings on the City’s stormwater improvement sales tax.  Included in this fund are expenditures 
for stormwater improvements. 
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
   3. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Contin- 
    ued) 
 
  Transportation Improvement Fund -- This fund is used to account for the proceeds and inter-


est earnings on the City’s transportation improvement sales tax.  Included in this fund are ex-
penditures for street improvements. 


 
  The other governmental funds of the City are considered nonmajor.  They are Special Revenue 


Funds which account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to 
expenditures for specific purposes, and one Debt Service Fund which include the TIF Special Al-
location Fund. 


 
  The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 


  Electric Fund -- This fund is used to account for the acquisition, operation, and maintenance of 
the City’s power and light utility facilities and services. 


 
  Water and Wastewater Fund -- This fund is used to account for the acquisition, operation, and 


maintenance of the City’s water and wastewater utility facilities and services. 
 
  Solid Waste Fund -- This fund is used to account for the provision of solid waste collection. 
 
  Additionally, the City reports the following fund type: 
 
  Agency Fund -- This fund is used to account for assets held in a trustee capacity on behalf of the 


Municipal Court. 
 
  As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 


financial statements.  Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other 
charges between the City’s utility funds and various other functions of the City.  Elimination of 
these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various func-
tions concerned.  


 
  Amounts reported as program revenues include:  1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, 


services, or privileges provided; 2) operating grants and contribution; and 3) capital grants and 
contributions.  Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as pro-
gram revenues.  Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.  


 
  Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  Operat-


ing revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering 
goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operation.  The principal op-
erating revenues of the enterprise funds are charges for services.  Operating expenses for the en-
terprise funds include the cost of services, administration expenses, and depreciation and amorti-
zation.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating reve-
nues and expenses.  
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
   4. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments 
 
  The City pools the cash of all funds, except for monies in certain restricted and special funds. 


The cash and investments balance in each fund represents the fund’s equity share of the City’s 
cash and investment pool.  Interest income earned on pooled cash and investments is allocated to 
the various funds based on their respective participation.  Interest income on restricted cash and 
investments is credited directly to the related fund. 


 
  For cash flow statement purposes, the City considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased 


with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.  State statutes authorize the City to 
invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, federal agencies, commercial paper, corporate bonds, 
and repurchase agreements.  Investments are reported at fair value. 


 
   5. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
 
  The allowance for uncollectible receivables is as follows: 
 


September 30
2015


General Fund 4,595$           
Parks and Recreation Fund 1,128             
Public Library Fund 1,290             
Municipal Band Fund 645                
Electric Fund 117,713         
Water/Wastewater Fund 42,701           
Solid Waste Fund 5,573             


Total 173,645$       


 
   6. Inventory 
 
  Inventories of the proprietary funds consist of electric, water and wastewater utility materials and 


are stated at cost. 
 
   7. Prepaid Items 
 
  Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the fiscal year-end are 


recorded as prepaid items on the consumption method.  Prepaid items are recorded as expendi-
tures when consumed rather than when purchased.  
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
   8. Restricted Assets 
 
  Certain cash and investments are restricted as to use for debt service, bond reserves, and system 


replacement and extension as provided by bond covenants. 
 
   9. Customer Deposits 
 
  The City collects a refundable deposit from customers prior to initiating metered utility service. 


Customer deposits are reported in restricted assets.  
 
 10. Interfund Transactions 
 
  The City has the following types of transactions among funds: 
 
  Transfers -- Transfers of resources from a fund receiving revenue to the fund through which re-


sources are to be expended are recorded as transfers.  Such transfers are reported as other financ-
ing sources (uses). 


 
  Due To/From Other Funds -- Current portions of long-term interfund loans receivable/payable 


are considered “available spendable resources” and are reported as assets and liabilities of the 
appropriate funds. 


 
  Services provided and used -- sales and purchases of goods and services between funds for a 


price approximating their external exchange value.  Interfund services provided and used are re-
ported as revenues in seller funds and expenditures or expenses in purchaser funds.  Unpaid 
amounts are reported as interfund receivables and payables in the fund balance sheets or fund 
statement of net position. 


 
  Reimbursements -- repayments from the funds responsible for particular expenditures or ex-


penses to the funds that initially paid for them.  Reimbursements are reported as expenditures in 
the reimbursing fund and as a reduction of expenditures in the reimbursed fund. 


 
 11. Capital Assets 
 
  Capital assets, which include property, equipment, intangibles, and infrastructure (e.g., roads, 


bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-
type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.  Capital assets are defined 
by the City as assets with an initial cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in ex-
cess of one year.  Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if pur-
chased or constructed.  Intangible assets include the right to use other governmental entity’s op-
erating facilities and/or land.  Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the 
date of donation.  
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
 11. Capital Assets (Continued) 
 
  The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materi-


ally extend assets lives are not capitalized.  Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over 
the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets, as applicable. 


 
  Depreciation is being computed on the straight-line method, using asset lives as follows:  
 
                              Assets                                                                                                                              Years 
 
  Buildings 10 - 50 
  Improvements 10 - 20 
  Street network 10 - 30 
  Equipment 3 - 7   
  Publications 10    
 
 12. Compensated Absences 
 
  City employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts, based on length of ser-


vice.  Sick leave may be accumulated to a maximum of ninety days.  Upon retirement, compen-
sation for sick leave is paid at 50% of the employee’s current rate of pay for eligible employees. 
Upon termination, compensation for accumulated vacation will be paid in full to the employee. 
All vacation pay and sick leave is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary 
fund financial statements. 


 
 13. Long-term Obligations 
 
  In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial 


statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the gov-
ernmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position.  
Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the 
straight-line method.  Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or dis-
count. 


 
  In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and dis-


counts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period.  The face amount of debt issued 
is reported as other financing sources.  Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as   
other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.  
Issuance cost, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as 
debt service expenditures. 
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
 14. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 
  In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section 


for deferred outflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element represents a con-
sumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an out-
flow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.  The City currently has deferred outflows of 
resources related to the pension reported on the statement of financial position. 


 
  In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate sec-


tion for deferred inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element represents an 
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an 
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  The City currently has deferred inflows of re-
sources for unavailable revenues from property taxes reported on the governmental funds bal-
ance sheet.  The City also has deferred inflows of resources related to the pension reported on the 
statement of net position. 


 
 15. Fund Balance Policies 
 
  The fund balance amounts are reported in the following applicable categories listed from the 


most restrictive to the least restrictive: 
 
  Nonspendable -- The portion of fund balances that is not in a spendable form or is required to be 


maintained intact. 
 
  Restricted -- The portion of fund balance that is subject to external restrictions and constrained 


to specific purposes imposed by agreement, through constitutional provisions, or by enabling 
legislation. 


 
  Committed -- The portion of fund balance with constraints or limitations by formal action (ordi-


nance) of the City Council, the highest level of decision-making authority. 
 
  Assigned -- The portion of fund balance that the City intends to use for a specific purpose as de-


termined by the applicable City Council officials to which the City Council has designated au-
thority.  Intent can be expressed by the City Council in the form of a motion.  Action by the City 
Council must occur prior to year-end. 


 
  Unassigned -- Amounts that are available for any purpose; these positive amounts are reported 


only in the General Fund.  In other governmental funds other than the general fund; if expendi-
tures incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts that are restricted, committed, or as-
signed to those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned fund balance in 
that fund. 
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
 15. Fund Balance Policies (Continued) 
 
  When an expenditure is incurred in governmental funds, which may be paid using either re-


stricted or unrestricted resources, the City’s policy is to pay the expenditure from the restricted 
fund balance and then from less restrictive classification - committed, assigned, and then unas-
signed fund balances. 


 
  The fund balance of the City’s General Fund has been accumulated to provide stability and flex-


ibility to respond to unexpected adversity and/or opportunities.  The target is to maintain an un-
assigned fund balance equal to 50% of budget expenditures.  The City considers a balance of less 
than 30% to be a cause for concern, barring unusual or deliberate circumstances, and a balance of 
more than 55% as excessive.  An amount in excess of 50% is to be considered for reservation to 
accumulate funding for capital projects and equipment, and/or to reduce the tax levy require-
ments, and shall be determined in conjunction with the annual budget process.  In the event that 
the unassigned General Fund balance is less than the policy anticipates, the City shall plan to ad-
just budget resources in the subsequent fiscal years to restore the balance. 


 
 16. Capitalization of Interest 
 
  Net interest costs on funds borrowed to finance the construction of capital assets are capitalized 


and depreciated over the life of the related asset for business-type activities and proprietary fund 
types.  For the year ended September 30, 2015, $164,576 in interest was capitalized in the Water 
and Wastewater Fund.  Interest is not capitalized for governmental fund types with the fund fi-
nancial statements. 


 
 17. Use of Estimates 
 
  The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 


accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assump-
tions that affect the amounts reported in the basic financial statements and accompanying notes.  
Actual results could differ from those estimates.  


 
 18. Pensions 
 
  For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 


inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary 
net position of the Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System (LAGERS) and 
additions to/deductions from LAGERS’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same 
basis as they are reported by LAGERS.  For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of 
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit 
terms.  LAGERS’ investments are reported at fair value.   
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NOTE B - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS 
 
   1. Deposits 
 
  Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits 


may not be returned or the City will not be able to recover collateral securities in the possession 
of an outside party.  The City’s bank deposits are required by state law to be secured by the de-
posit of certain securities specified at RSMo 30.270 with the City or trustee institution.  The  
value of the securities must amount to the total of the City’s cash not insured by the Federal De-
posit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). 


 
  As of September 30, 2015, the City’s bank balances were entirely secured or collateralized with 


securities held by the City or by its agent in the City’s name. 
 
   2. Investments 
 
  As of September 30, 2015, the City had the following investments: 
 


Fair No Less Than 1 - 5 Credit
Value Maturity One Year Years Risk


Primary Government
Certificates of deposit 6,952,118$     -             6,933,137  18,981     N/A
Guaranteed investment contract 330,186          -             -             330,186   N/A
Money market funds 6,095,727       6,095,727  -             -           Not rated


Total Investments 13,378,031$   6,095,727  6,933,137  349,167   


Investments


Maturities


 
  Investment Policies 
 
  Credit Risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its ob-


ligations.  Although the City has no formal investment policy regarding credit risk, the portfolio 
is diversified to reduce potential losses on individual securities. 


 
  Interest Rate Risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of 


an investment.  Investments held for longer periods are subject to increased risk of adverse inter-
est rate changes.  The City has no formal investment policy regarding interest rate risk, but inter-
est rate risk is minimized by structuring the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet 
cash requirements for ongoing operations, therefore avoiding the need to sell securities on the 
open market prior to maturity and investing primarily in shorter term securities. 


 
  Concentration of Credit Risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the City’s in-


vestment in a single issuer.  The City has no formal investment policy relating to concentration 
of credit risk, but concentration of credit risk is minimized by diversifying the investment portfo-
lio. 
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NOTE B - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
 2. Investments (Continued) 
 
  Custodial Credit Risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits may not 


be returned or the City will not be fully able to recover collateral securities in the possession of 
an outside party.  Protection of the City’s deposits is provided by the FDIC, by eligible securities 
pledged by the financial institution, or by a single collateral pool established by the financial in-
stitution. 


 
 
NOTE C - CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital asset activity for governmental activities was as follows: 
 


Balance Balance
September 30 September 30


2014 Increases Decreases 2015
Governmental Activities


Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 3,066,624$     -              -             3,066,624         
Construction in progress 580,290          458,660       437,105     601,845            


Total Capital Assets Not
   Being Depreciated 3,646,914       458,660       437,105     3,668,469         


Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 3,751,201       -              -             3,751,201         
Improvements 1,477,505       454,425       -             1,931,930         
Equipment 4,282,541       155,259       -             4,437,800         
Publications 601,699          18,172         -             619,871            
Infrastructure 20,792,920     187,846       -             20,980,766       


Total Capital Assets Being
   Depreciated 30,905,866     815,702       -             31,721,568       


Less - Accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 1,056,972       111,158       -             1,168,130         
Improvements 539,831          95,292         -             635,123            
Equipment 3,355,387       216,171       -             3,571,558         
Publications 505,339          21,666         -             527,005            
Infrastructure 13,816,729     376,568       -             14,193,297       


Total Accumulated Depreciation 19,274,258     820,855       -             20,095,113       
Total Capital Assets Being
   Depreciated, Net 11,631,608     (5,153)         -             11,626,455       


Governmental Activities
   Capital Assets, Net 15,278,522$   453,507       437,105     15,294,924       


For The Year Ended September 30, 2015
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NOTE C - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
 
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the governmental activities as follows: 
 
                                                                                                                                                                             For The 
                                                                                                                                                                         Year Ended 
                                                                                                                                                                        September 30 
                                                                                                                                                                                2015         
Governmental Activities 
 General government $    23,479 
 Public safety 150,175 
 Public works 546,773 
 Parks and recreation 73,549 
 Public library         26,879 
 
   Total   $  820,855 
 
Capital asset activity for business-type activities was as follows: 
 


Balance Balance
September 30 September 30


2014 Increases Decreases 2015
Business-type Activities
  Electric Fund


Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 42,541$          -              -             42,541              
Construction in progress -                 1,411,564    -             1,411,564         


Total Capital Assets Not
   Being Depreciated 42,541            1,411,564    -             1,454,105         


Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 4,236,642       -              -             4,236,642         
Equipment 3,812,198       119,119       73,895       3,857,422         


Total Capital Assets Being
   Depreciated 8,048,840       119,119       73,895       8,094,064         


Less - Accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 1,441,234       178,057       -             1,619,291         
Equipment 3,106,534       60,122         73,895       3,092,761         


Total Accumulated Depreciation 4,547,768       238,179       73,895       4,712,052         
Total Capital Assets Being
   Depreciated, Net 3,501,072       (119,060)     -             3,382,012         
Electric Fund Capital Assets, Net 3,543,613       1,292,504    -             4,836,117         


For The Year Ended September 30, 2015
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NOTE C - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
 


Balance Balance
September 30 September 30


2014 Increases Decreases 2015
Business-type Activities (Continued)
  Water and Wastewater Fund


Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 778,360          274,649       -             1,053,009         
Construction in progress 153,166          1,740,809    7,735         1,886,240         


Total Capital Assets Not
   Being Depreciated 931,526          2,015,458    7,735         2,939,249         


Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 29,379,909     415,014       -             29,794,923       
Improvements 3,916,427       -              -             3,916,427         
Equipment 441,631          -              -             441,631            


Total Capital Assets Being
   Depreciated 33,737,967     415,014       -             34,152,981       


Less - Accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 17,639,088     762,670       -             18,401,758       
Improvements 1,149,428       97,486         -             1,246,914         
Equipment 184,427          40,933         -             225,360            


Total Accumulated Depreciation 18,972,943     901,089       -             19,874,032       
Total Capital Assets Being
   Depreciated, Net 14,765,024     (486,075)     -             14,278,949       
Water And Wastewater Fund
   Capital Assets, Net 15,696,550     1,529,383    7,735         17,218,198       


  Solid Waste Fund
Capital assets not being depreciated:


Land 46,705            -              -             46,705              
Capital assets being depreciated:


Equipment 36,104            -              -             36,104              
Less - Accumulated depreciation for:


Equipment 30,578            2,550           -             33,128              
Total Capital Assets Being
   Depreciated, Net 5,526              (2,550)         -             2,976                
Solid Waste Fund Capital
   Assets, Net 52,231            (2,550)         -             49,681              


Total Business-type Activities
   Capital Assets, Net 19,292,394$   2,819,337    7,735         22,103,996       


For The Year Ended September 30, 2015
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NOTE C - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
 
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the business-type activities as follows: 
 
                                                                                                                                                                              For The 
                                                                                                                                                                          Year Ended 
                                                                                                                                                                         September 30 
                                                                                                                                                                                 2015        
Business-type Activities 
 Electric  $     238,179 
 Water and wastewater 901,089 
 Solid waste               2,550 
 
  Total   $  1,141,818 
 
 
NOTE D - LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
A summary of changes in long-term debt is as follows: 
 


Amounts
Balance Balance Due


September 30 September 30 Within
2014 Additions Reductions 2015 One Year


Governmental Activities
Series 2012A certificates of
   participation 2,585,000$     -             100,000        2,485,000     105,000     
Series 2012B certificates of
   participation 430,000          -             45,000          385,000        45,000       
Capital lease - folder/sorter machine 17,479            -             10,950          6,529            6,529         
Capital lease - police vehicles 62,191            26,842       37,563          51,470          38,068       
Accrued compensated absences 130,562          220,563     221,520        129,605        129,605     


Total Governmental
   Activities 3,225,232$     247,405     415,033        3,057,604     324,202     


For The Year Ended September 30, 2015


 
Compensated absences and capital leases are generally liquidated by the General Fund.  The certificates of par-
ticipation are liquidated by the Stormwater Improvement Fund and the Transportation Improvement Fund.  
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NOTE D - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 


Amounts
Balance Balance Due


September 30 September 30 Within
2014 Additions Reductions 2015 One Year


Business-type Activities
Electric Fund


Accrued compensated absences 65,628$          96,562       78,630          83,560          83,560       


Water and Wastewater Fund
1996 Revenue Bonds 445,000          -             215,000        230,000        230,000     
1998 Revenue Bonds 1,170,000       -             215,000        955,000        225,000     
2009 Refunding and Improvement
   Bonds 1,182,700       -             62,400          1,120,300     63,800       
2013 Waterworks and Sewerage
   Bonds 517,755          92,438       21,493          588,700        44,000       
2014 Certificates of participation -                 5,075,000  25,000          5,050,000     10,000       
Plus - Premium -                 98,924       -               98,924          -             
Note payable 148,321          -             56,337          91,984          91,984       
Accrued compensated absences 65,261            77,998       68,138          75,121          75,121       


Total Water And
   Wastewater Fund 3,529,037       5,344,360  663,368        8,210,029     739,905     


Total Business-
   type Activities 3,594,665$     5,440,922  741,998        8,293,589     823,465     


For The Year Ended September 30, 2015


 
Compensated absences are generally liquidated by the appropriate related fund.  The bonds, certificates of par-
ticipation, and note payable are liquidated by the Water and Wastewater Fund.  
 
Governmental Activities 
 
Certificates of Participation 
 
In May 2012 the City issued $2,795,000 in certificates of participation (Series 2012A).  These bonds were used 
to finance various storm water control improvements.  The bonds bear interest ranging from 2% to 4.375% and 
are due April 1, 2032. 
 
In May 2012 the City issued $520,000 in certificates of participation (Series 2012B).  These bonds were used to 
finance various street improvements.  The bonds bear interest ranging from 2% to 3.125% and are due April 1, 
2022. 
 
Certificates of participation debt service requirements to maturity are as follows: 
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NOTE D - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 


For The
Years Ending
September 30 Principal Interest Total


2016 150,000$        102,063     252,063        
2017 150,000          99,063       249,063        
2018 150,000          96,063       246,063        
2019 160,000          92,463       252,463        
2020 160,000          88,338       248,338        


2021 - 2025 765,000          363,163     1,128,163     
2026 - 2030 740,000          228,568     968,568        
2031 - 2032 595,000          44,623       639,623        


Total 2,870,000$     1,114,344  3,984,344     


Certificates Of Participation
Governmental Activities


 
Capital Lease Obligations 
 
In February 2011, the City entered into a lease purchase agreement to finance the cost of a folder/sorter ma-
chine.  The lease is for 5 years requiring quarterly installments of $3,042 through March 2016, interest at 5%. 
 
In January 2013, the City entered into a lease purchase agreement to finance the cost of six police vehicles.  The 
lease is for 4 years requiring annual installments of $33,536 through March 2016, interest at 5.19%. 
 
In January 2015, the City entered into a lease purchase agreement to finance the cost of a K9 police vehicle.  
The lease is for 4 years requiring annual installments of $7,254 through January 2018, interest at 5.45%. 
 
The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows: 
 


Equipment 241,850$      
Less - Accumulated depreciation 83,729          


Total 158,121$      


 
The future minimum lease payment under the capital leases and the present value of the net minimum lease 
payment as of September 30, 2015 is as follows: 
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NOTE D - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 


47,888$     
7,254         
7,254         


Total Minimum
   Lease Payment 62,396       


Less - Amount representing interest 4,397         


Present Value Of 
   Future Minimum
   Lease Payments 57,999$     


2018


For The
Years Ending
September 30


2016
2017


 
Business-type Activities 
 
Revenue Bonds Payable 
 


September 30
2015


Series 1996C Combined Waterworks and Sewerage System Revenue Bonds
(State Revolving Fund Program) due in varying annual installments
through January 2016; interest of 3.6% to 5.9% 230,000$       


Series 1998B Combined Waterworks and Sewerage System Revenue Bonds
(State Revolving Fund Program) due in varying annual installments
through January 2019; interest of 3.45% to 5.25% 955,000         


Series 2009B Combined Waterworks and Sewerage System Refunding and Improve-
ment Revenue Bonds (State of Missouri - Direct Loan Program - ARRA) due in
varying annual installments through July 2030, interest of 1.49% 1,120,300      


Series 2013 Combined Waterworks and Sewerage Revenue Bonds (State of Missouri -
Direct Loan Program) due in varying annual installments through July 2027, interest rate
varies, maximum authorized amount of $616,000 588,700         


                                    Total Revenue Bonds 2,894,000$    
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NOTE D - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 
Revenue bonds debt service requirements to maturity are as follows: 
 


For The
Years Ending
September 30 Principal Interest Total


2016 518,800$        63,248       582,048        
2017 300,200          44,313       344,513        
2018 311,600          32,536       344,136        
2019 318,100          19,775       337,875        
2020 69,600            12,506       82,106          


2021 - 2025 372,100          46,406       418,506        
2026 - 2030 414,900          17,271       432,171        


Total 2,305,300$     236,055     2,541,355     


Revenue Bonds
Business-type Activities


 
Net revenues are pledged over the term of the above Bonds in an amount equal to the total principal and interest 
payments. 
 
The water and wastewater bond ordinance and bond indentures require that the system be accounted for in a 
separate enterprise fund and that revenues are pledged for repayment.  They also require that after sufficient 
current assets have been set aside to operate the systems, all remaining monies held in the fund be segregated 
and restricted in separate special reserves and accounts in the following sequence: 
 
                              Reserve                                                                            Restriction 
 
 Principal and interest retirement For the monthly accumulation of monies to meet the ma- 
  turing revenue bond principal and interest requirements 
 
 Bond retirement Paying principal and interest in the event of a deficiency in 
  the current principal and interest account 
 
 Depreciation and replacement For emergency replacement and repair of the system 
 
 System and equipment replacement For ensuring replacement needs over the useful lives of  
  the system assets 
 
Surplus account monies are reflected as unrestricted cash.  The required reserves are included in restricted cash 
and cash equivalents and are reported in the accompanying statement of net position as follows: 
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NOTE D - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 


Principal and interest retirement 441,432$     
Bond retirement 5,666           
Depreciation and replacement 325,796       
System and equipment replacement 108,065       


Total 880,959$     


 
Various bond ordinances and indentures contain significant limitations and restrictions on annual debt service 
requirements, maintenance and flow of monies through various restricted accounts, minimum amounts to be 
maintained in various sinking funds, and minimum revenue bond coverages. 
 
Certificates of Participation 
 
In October 2014 the City issued $5,075,000 in certificates of participation (Series 2014).  These bonds were 
used to finance water and sewer system improvements.  The bonds bear interest ranging from 2% to 4% and are 
due March 1, 2029. 
 
Certificates of participation debt service requirements to maturity are as follows: 
 


For The
Years Ending
September 30 Principal Interest Total


2016 10,000$          164,725     174,725        
2017 120,000          163,425     283,425        
2018 125,000          160,975     285,975        
2019 135,000          157,700     292,700        
2020 395,000          149,750     544,750        


2021 - 2025 2,160,000       563,081     2,723,081     
2026 - 2029 2,105,000       174,644     2,279,644     


Total 5,050,000$     1,534,300  6,584,300     


Business-type Activities
Certificates Of Participation


Note Payable 
 
Note payable consists of: 
 
                                                                                                                                                         September 30 
                                                                                                                                                                 2015         
Note payable to a financial institution, due in semi-annual installments 
of $31,528 through April 1, 2016, interest at 4.875%, secured by water/ 
wastewater equipment. $91,984 
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NOTE E - PENSION PLAN 
 
Plan Description 
 
The City’s defined benefit pension plan provides certain retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan mem-
bers and beneficiaries.  The City participates in the LAGERS.  LAGERS is an agent multiple-employer, 
statewide public employee pension plan established in 1967 and administered in accordance with RSMo 
70.600-70.755.  As such, it is LAGERS’ responsibility to administer the law in accordance with the expressed 
intent of the General Assembly.  The plan is qualified under the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a) and is 
tax exempt.  The responsibility for the operations and administration of LAGERS is vested in the LAGERS’ 
Board of Trustees consisting of seven persons.  LAGERS issues a publicly available financial report that in-
cludes financial statements and required supplemental information.  This report may be obtained by accessing 
the LAGERS’ website at www.molagers.org.   
 
Benefits Provided 
 
LAGERS provides retirement, death and disability benefits.  Benefit provisions are adopted by the governing 
body of the employer, within the options available in the state statutes governing LAGERS.  All benefits vest 
after 5 years of credited service.  Employees who retire on or after age 60 (55 for police and fire) with 5 or more 
years of service are entitled to an allowance for life based upon the benefit program information provided be-
low.  Employees may retire with an early retirement benefit with a minimum of 5 years of credited service and 
after attaining age 55 (50 for police and fire) and receive a reduced allowance.   
 
                                                                                                                                          2015 Valuation 
 
 Benefit multiplier 2% for life 
 Final average salary 3 years 
 Member contributions Noncontributory for employees 
 
Benefit terms provide for annual post retirement adjustments to each member’s retirement allowance subse-
quent to the member’s retirement date.  The annual adjustment is based on the increase in the Consumer Price 
Index and is limited to 4% per year. 
 
Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 
 
At June 30, 2015, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms: 
 
 Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 43 
 Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 28 
 Active employees     62 
 
  Total   133 
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NOTE E - PENSION PLAN (Continued) 
 
Contributions 
 
The City is required to contribute amounts at least equal to the actuarially determined rate, as established by 
LAGERS.  The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits 
earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance an unfunded accrued liability.  Full-
time employees of the employer do not contribute to the pension plan.  The City contribution rates are 14.8% 
(General), and 14.7% (Police) of annual covered payroll.   
 
Net Pension Liability 
 
The City’s net pension liability (asset) was measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total pension liability used to 
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of February 28, 2015.   
 
Actuarial Assumptions 
 
The total pension liability in the February 28, 2015 actuarial valuation was determined using the following ac-
tuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 
 
 Inflation 3.5% wage inflation; 3% price inflation 
 Salary increase 3.5% to 6.8% including wage inflation 
 Investment rate of return 7.25%, net of investment and administrative expenses 
 
Mortality rates were based on 105% of the 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Table set back zero years for both 
males and females.   
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the February 28, 2015 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial ex-
perience study for the period March 1, 2005 through February 28, 2010. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a model method in 
which the best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of investment ex-
penses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.  These ranges are combined to produce the long-
term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected inflation.  The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of 
return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table: 
 
                                                                                                                                                               Long-term 
                                                                                                                                                                Expected 
                                                                                                                                                                Real Rate 
               Asset Class                                                      Allocation                                                      Of Return 
 
 Equity 48.50% 5.50% 
 Fixed income 25.00  2.25 
 Real assets 20.00  4.50 
 Strategic Assets 6.50  7.50 
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NOTE E - PENSION PLAN (Continued) 
 
Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability is 7.25%.  The projection of cash flows used to de-
termine the discount rate assumes that employer and employee contributions will be made at the rates agreed 
upon for employees and the actuarially determined rates for employers.  Based on these assumptions, the pen-
sion plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to pay all projected future benefit payments of 
current active and inactive employees.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan invest-
ments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payment to determine the total pension liability.   
 
Changes in the Net Pension Liability 


Total Pension Plan Fiduciary
Liability Net Position


(a) (b)


Balances at June 30, 2014 11,559,523$   12,996,420      (1,436,897)  


Changes for the year:
Service cost 324,629          -                   324,629       


834,311          -                   834,311       
Difference between expected
   and actual experience (14,521)           -                   (14,521)       
Contributions - employer -                  415,178           (415,178)     
Net investment income -                  255,744           (255,744)     
Benefit payments, including refunds (430,048)         (430,048)          -              
Administrative expense -                  (11,185)            11,185         
Other changes -                  199,277           (199,277)     


Net Changes 714,371          428,966           285,405       


Balances at June 30, 2015 12,273,894$   13,425,386      (1,151,492)  


Increase (Decrease)


Interest


(a) - (b)
Liability (Asset)


Net Pension


 
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
 
The following presents the net pension liability (asset) of the employer, calculated using the discount rate of 
7.25%, as well as what the employer’s net pension liability would be using a discount rate that is 1% point  
lower (6.25%) or 1% point higher (8.25%) than the current rate.   
 
                                                                                                          Current Single 
                                                                                                                Discount 
                                                             1% Decrease                     Rate Assumption                     1% Increase 
 
Net pension liability (asset) $642,215  (1,151,492 ) (2,632,921 ) 
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NOTE E - PENSION PLAN (Continued) 
 
Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
  Pensions 
 
For the year ended September 30, 2015, the employer recognized pension expense of $156,863.  Reported de-
ferred outflows and inflows of resources are related to pensions from the following sources: 
 


Outflows Inflows


Differences in experience 35,440$    (45,853)  (10,413)    
Excess (deficit) investment returns 554,133    -         554,133   
Contributions subsequent to the 
   measurement date* 100,956    -         100,956   


Total 690,529$  (45,853)  644,676   


Net Outflows


 
*The amount reported as deferred outflows of resources resulting from contributions subsequent to the mea-
surement date will be recognized as a reduction in the net pension liability for the year ending September 30, 
2016. 
 
Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pen-
sion expense as follows: 
 


For The
Years Ending
September 30


2016 235,381$     
2017 134,425       
2018 134,425       
2019 134,426       
2020 6,019           


          Total 644,676$     


 
 
NOTE F - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 
 
The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan under IRS Code Section 457.  Under this plan, employ-
ees may elect to defer a portion of their compensation.  Participation in the plan is optional and participants elect how 
their salary deferrals are invested.  The plan assets are held in trust for the benefit of the plan participants and an in-
dependent plan administrator is responsible for administering the plan. 
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NOTE G - INTERFUND ASSETS/LIABILITIES 
 
Individual interfund assets and liabilities are as follows: 
 
Due From/To Other Funds 
 


September 30
Receivable Fund Payable Fund 2015


General Fund Municipal Band Fund 7,408$           
General Fund Stormwater Improvement Fund 49,602           
Electric Fund General Fund 177,085         
Electric Fund Parks and Recreation Fund 47,490           
Water/Wastewater Fund General Fund 243,527         
Water/Wastewater Fund Parks and Recreation Fund 2,677             
Water/Wastewater Fund Public Library Fund 64,608           
Water/Wastewater Fund Electric Fund 1,411,564      


             Total 2,003,961$    


 
The outstanding balances between funds result mainly from the time lag between dates that:  1) interfund goods 
and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, 2) transactions are recorded in accounting sys-
tem, and 3) payments between funds are made.  Some of the interfund balances are expected to be repaid during 
the fiscal year ending September 30, 2016, and others are long-term for various projects paid for from the 2014 
certificates of participation by the Water and Wastewater Fund. 
 
 
NOTE H - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 
 
Individual interfund transactions are as follows: 


For The
Year Ended


September 30
Transfers In Transfers Out 2015


General Fund Electric Fund 5,438$           
General Fund Water/Wastewater Fund 10,875           


Total 16,313$         


 
Interfund transfers were used to:  1) use unrestricted revenues collected in the General Fund to finance other 
funds in accordance with budgetary authorization or 2) move revenues from the fund that ordinance or budget 
requires to collect them to the fund that ordinance or budget requires to expend them.   
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NOTE I - PROPERTY TAXES 
 
The City levies a tax on the assessed value of all real and personal property located within the City as of Janu-
ary 1 each year.  Taxes are levied by September 1 and are considered delinquent if not paid by January 1. 
 
The tax levy per $100 of the assessed valuation of tangible taxable property for the calendar year 2014 for pur-
posed of local taxation was: 
 
 General $0.6114 
 Parks and recreation 0.1501 
 Library 0.1716 
 Band 0.0858 
 
 
NOTE J - LAND HELD FOR SALE 
 
In January 1996 the City acquired land in the “Crossroads Corporate Center”.  The land is held for resale and 
has a cost basis of $100,476. 
 
 
NOTE K - RISK MANAGEMENT  
 
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors 
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. 
 
The City is a member of the Midwest Public Risk of Missouri (MPR), a nonprofit association organized to op-
erate as a group self-insured risk pool.  The purpose of MPR is to seek the prevention or lessening of casualty 
and property losses to its member participants and injuries to persons or employees which might result in claims 
being made against such member participants.  The City has no direct control over budgeting, financing, the 
governing body or management selection.   
 
MPR is funded by its member participants.  Member assessments are collected in advance and are calculated 
based on members’ property valuation and payroll data multiplied by a pool assessment factor.  The assessment 
factor is based on the loss experience of the entire pool adjusted up or down for each member participant de-
pending on that member’s own loss experience.  Member participants with a consistent record of costly claims 
will pay more than members with a consistent record of less claims activity.  Coverage obtained by the City 
through MPR includes property, crime, general liability, auto liability, police professional and law enforcement 
liability, and public officials’ liability.  Losses from individual claims in excess of per-occurrence coverage lim-
its (MPR’s self-insured retention limits combined with excess insurance contract limits) remain the responsibil-
ity of the respective member participants.   
 
In the unlikely event that all or any of the insurance companies cancel, fail to renew, or are unable to meet their 
obligations under excess insurance contracts, MPR and its member participants would be responsible for the 
defaulted amounts.  Additionally, the Articles of MPR provide for supplemental assessments in the event the 
annual assessment is not sufficient to meet obligations.  No supplemental assessments were required by MPR 
during fiscal year 2015. 
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NOTE L - CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 
 
Post Closure Costs of Landfill - As a result of a 1989 agreement between the City and the Missouri Depart-
ment of Natural resources (DNR) relative to the closure of a solid waste landfill site, the City entered into a 
“Contract of Obligation” with DNR.  The contract relates to the City’s obligation for periodic post-closure care, 
it could become liable under the contract to pay to DNR a sum no greater than $387,138.  No less than annually, 
the City is required to reaffirm, in writing, its obligation to DNR.  For the year ended September 30, 2015, the 
City did not incur any significant costs towards the periodic maintenance of the old landfill pursuant to DNR 
inspection of the site, and approval of the maintenance measures taken.  
 
Federal and State Grants - Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and ad-
justment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government.  Any disallowed claims, including amounts 
already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds.  The amount, if any, of expenditures which 
may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the City expects such amounts, if 
any, to be immaterial. 
 
Litigation - The City is subject to various lawsuits.  Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently 
determinable, in the opinion of the City’s attorney, the resolution of most of these matters will not have material 
adverse effect on the financial condition of the City. 
 
Construction - At September 30, 2015, the City had construction commitments for public safety projects and 
wastewater projects in the amount of $28,349 and $222,625, respectively. 
 
 
NOTE M - CONDUIT DEBT 
 
The City authorized Industrial Revenue Bonds to provide financial assistance to a non-profit entity for construc-
tion of a building, the acquisition of medical equipment, and to refinance existing debt, all deemed to be in the 
public interest.  The bonds are secured by the building and equipment financed and are payable solely from 
payments received on the underlying loans.  Neither the City, the State of Missouri, nor any political subdivi-
sion thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the outstanding bonds.  Accordingly, the bonds are not 
reported as a liability in the accompanying financial statements.  These bonds were refinanced on May 17, 
2007.  As of September 30, 2015, the outstanding principal amount payable was $17,135,000. 
 
 
NOTE N - RESTRICTED NET POSITION 
 
The government-wide statement of net position reports $2,582,369 of restricted net position, of which 
$2,232,946 is restricted by enabling legislation. 
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NOTE O - RESTATEMENT OF FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION 
 
The previously stated fund balances/net position have been restated as follows: 
 


Parks And Public Municipal
General Recreation Library Band


Fund Fund Fund Fund
Fund balance/net position, 
   September 30, 2014, 1,411,793$  215,442       80,417   159,922     15,915,735  
   as previously reported
Restatement for:


GASB 68 implementation -              -              -         -            692,871       
Revenue recognition (20,005)       (22,792)       (26,057)  (13,028)     (18,958)       


Fund Balance/Net
   Position, Septem-
   ber 30, 2014
   As Restated 1,391,788$  192,650       54,360   146,894     16,589,648  


Governmental
Activities


 
 


Water/ Total
Electric Wastewater Solid Waste Business-type


Fund Fund Fund Activities


Net position, September 30, 2014,
   as previously reported 9,612,959$    15,343,185     265,437          25,221,581     
Restatement for:


GASB 68 implementation 464,164         365,881          14,857            844,902          


Net Position, Septem-
   ber 30, 2014,
   As Restated 10,077,123$  15,709,066     280,294          26,066,483     
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CITY OF CAMERON, MISSOURI
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,


EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE  -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND


_________________________________________________________FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015


Over
 (Under)


Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES


Sales tax 1,240,000$  1,240,000  1,315,339    75,339        
Property tax 430,000       430,000     429,812       (188)            
Other local taxes 95,000         194,000     196,080       2,080          
Intergovernmental 320,000       320,000     396,996       76,996        
Gross receipts tax 856,000       984,000     1,016,640    32,640        
In lieu of tax 51,774         242,774     540,647       297,873      
Licenses and permits 30,125         55,125       56,850         1,725          
Fines and forfeitures 138,800       145,300     121,921       (23,379)       
Charges for services 290,350       359,550     357,284       (2,266)         
Grants and contributions 29,000         547,800     270,485       (277,315)     
Investment income 9,849           12,349       16,833         4,484          
Other 40,150         42,350       43,694         1,344          


Total Revenues 3,531,048    4,573,248  4,762,581    189,333      


EXPENDITURES
Current:


General government 357,491       426,798     337,664       (89,134)       
Public safety 2,009,100    2,012,500  1,904,348    (108,152)     
Public works 895,639       857,537     737,002       (120,535)     


Capital outlay 630,736       1,164,911  590,145       (574,766)     
Debt service:


Principal 58,463         58,463       48,513         (9,950)         
Interest 4,445           4,745         4,745           -              


Total Expenditures 3,955,874    4,524,954  3,622,417    (902,537)     


REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (424,826)     48,294       1,140,164    1,091,870    


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Issuance of capital lease -              -            26,842         26,842        
Issuance of long-term debt 228,236       228,236     -              (228,236)     
Sale of capital assets -              31,516       -              (31,516)       
Transfers in 16,313         16,313       16,313         -              


Total Other Financing
   Sources (Uses) 244,549       276,065     43,155         (232,910)     


NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (180,277)$    324,359     1,183,319    858,960      


FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1, AS RESTATED 1,391,788    


FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 2,575,107$  
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CITY OF CAMERON, MISSOURI
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF


REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - STORMWATER IMPROVEMENT FUND


_______________________________________________FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015


Over
 (Under)


Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES


Sales tax 308,000$   308,000    328,403     20,403        
Investment income 300            300           144            (156)            
Other -             -            16,863       16,863        


Total Revenues 308,300     308,300    345,410     37,110        


EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 5,000         193,000    200,589     7,589          
Debt service:


Principal 100,000     100,000    100,000     -              
Interest 94,787       94,787      94,595       (192)            


Total Expenditures 199,787     387,787    395,184     7,397          


REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
   EXPENDITURES 108,513     (79,487)     (49,774)      29,713        


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Issuance of long-term debt -             171,000    -             (171,000)     


NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 108,513$   91,513      (49,774)      (141,287)     


FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 342,199


FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 292,425$   
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CITY OF CAMERON, MISSOURI
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF


REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT FUND


_______________________________________________FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015


Over
 (Under)


Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES


Sales tax 614,000$    614,000      656,804       42,804         
Investment income 1,025          4,525          4,932           407              


Total Revenues 615,025      618,525      661,736       43,211         


EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 1,150,000   150,000      56,291         (93,709)       
Debt service:


Principal 45,000        45,000        45,000         -              
Interest 12,575        12,575        12,382         (193)            


Total Expenditures 1,207,575   207,575      113,673       (93,902)       


NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (592,550)$   410,950      548,063       137,113       


FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 1,287,689


FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 1,835,752$  
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Budgetary Data 
 
The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:  
 
 a. Prior to October 1, the City Manager, who serves as the budget officer, submits to the City Council a 


proposed operating budget for all funds for the fiscal year commencing the following October 1.  The op-
erating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.  Budgeted expenditures 
cannot exceed beginning available monies plus estimated revenues for the year.  Total actual expendi-
tures may not legally exceed total budgeted expenditures.  All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-
end. 


 b. Public hearing meetings are held to obtain taxpayer comments.  Prior to approval by the City Council, the 
budget document is available for public inspection. 


 d. Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted by a vote of the City Council. 
 e. Subsequent to its formal approval of the budget, the City Council has the authority to make necessary 


adjustments to the budget by formal vote. 
 
Budgets for the City’s governmental funds are prepared in accordance with the basis of accounting utilized by 
those funds, except as follows: 
 
 a. Payments from the electric and water and wastewater enterprise funds are treated as revenue in the Gen-


eral Fund for budgetary purposes. 
 
For the year ended September 30, 2015, Stormwater Improvement Fund expenditures exceeded appropriations 
by $7,397 and the TIF Special Allocation Fund expenditures exceeded appropriations by $11,924.  These over 
expenditures were covered by additional current year revenues, available fund balance, or will be recovered by 
future year’s revenues. 
 
 







CITY OF CAMERON, MISSOURI
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF CHANGE


IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
_______________________________________________FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015


Total Pension Liability
Service cost 324,629$       
Interest on the total pension liability 834,311         
Difference between expected and actual experience (14,521)          
Benefit payments (430,048)        


Net Change In Total Pension Liability 714,371         


Total Pension Liability Beginning 11,559,523    


Total Pension Liability Ending (a) 12,273,894$  


Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - employer 415,178$       
Pension plan net investment income 255,744         
Benefit payments (430,048)        
Pension plan administrative expense (11,185)          
Other 199,277         


Net Change In Plan Fiduciary Net Position 428,966         


Plan Fiduciary Net Position Beginning 12,996,420    


Plan Fiduciary Net Position Ending (b) 13,425,386$  


Net Pension Liability (Asset) Ending (a-b) (1,151,492)$   


Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage
   of the Total Pension Liability (109.38)          %


Covered Employee Payroll (for February 28/29 Valuation) 2,772,357$    


Net Pension Liability (Asset) as a Percentage
  of Covered Employee Payroll (41.53)            %


Notes:
Information is not available for fiscal years prior to 2015.
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CITY OF CAMERON, MISSOURI
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS


__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS


2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006


Actuarially determined pension contribution 435,569$     438,740     417,877     399,953     447,978     328,160     323,403     318,146     335,220     321,763     
Contributions in relation to the actuarially
   determined contribution 414,779       408,653     368,017     343,634     353,355     328,160     323,403     318,146     335,220     321,763     


Contribution Deficiency 20,790$       30,087       49,860       56,319       94,623       -            -            -            -            -            


Covered Employee Payroll 2,807,093$  2,699,233  2,570,956  2,588,729  2,885,553  2,921,381  2,621,149  2,491,932  2,463,022  2,314,465  


Covered Employee Payroll Contributions as 
   a Percentage of Covered Employee Payroll 14.78           % 15.14         14.31         13.27         12.25         11.23         12.34         12.77         13.61         13.90         


Notes to schedule:


Valuation date:
Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of February 28 prior to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported.


Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Amortization method Level percent of payroll, closed
Remaining amortization period Multiple bases from 14 to 17 years
Asset valuation method 5 years smoothed market; 20% corridor
Inflation 3.5% wage inflation; 3% price inflation
Salary increases 3.5% to 6.8% including wage inflation
Investment rate of return 7.25%, net of investment and administrative expenses
Retirement age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the


type of eligibility condition
Mortality 105% of the 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Table set back zero years


for men and zero years for women.  Based upon experience observed
during the most recent 5-year period study, it appears that the current table


provides for an approximate 13% margin for future mortality improvement.


Other information:
Notes:  There were no benefit changes during the year.
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CITY OF CAMERON, MISSOURI
OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION -


COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________SEPTEMBER 30, 2015


Parks And Public Municipal TIF Special
Recreation Library Band Total


ASSETS 
Cash and investments 272,029$     91,079     174,027     781         41,963       579,879      
Receivables, net:


Sales tax 23,805 -        -          -      -          23,805        
Property tax 7,548 8,680    4,263      -      -          20,491        
Intergovernmental -               -        -          -      9,448      9,448          
Interest 74                22         36           -      -          132             


Total Assets 303,456$     99,781     178,326     781         51,411       633,755      


LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 12,598$       3,623       9                -         46,104    62,334        
Due to other funds 50,167         64,608     7,408         -         -             122,183      


Total Liabilities 62,765         68,231     7,417         -         46,104       184,517      


DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues - property taxes 8,456           9,718       4,782         -         -             22,956        


FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:


Parks and recreation 232,235       -           -             -         -             232,235      
Public library -               21,832     -             -         -             21,832        
Municipal band -               -           166,127     -         -             166,127      
Low-income housing -               -           -             781         -             781             
TIF special allocation -               -           -             -         5,307         5,307          


Total Fund Balances 232,235       21,832     166,127     781         5,307         426,282      


Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows Of
   Resources, And Fund Balances 303,456$     99,781     178,326     781         51,411       633,755      
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CITY OF CAMERON, MISSOURI
OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION -


COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS


__________________________________________________________________________________FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015


Parks And Public Municipal Low-Income
Recreation Library Band Total


REVENUES
Sales tax 164,408$  -         -           -         -         164,408    
Property tax 107,098    122,440  61,214     -         -         290,752    
Other local taxes 37,243      42,209    19,863     -         51,220   150,535    
Charges for services 2,207        -         -           -         -         2,207        
Grants and contributions -            17,398    250          17,000    -         34,648      
Investment income 889           196         493          7             11          1,596        
Other 550           9,740      13            -         -         10,303      


Total Revenues 312,395    191,983  81,833     17,007    51,231   654,449    


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Parks and recreation 243,029    -         -           -         -         243,029    
Public library -            159,903  -           -         -         159,903    
Municipal band -            -         62,600     -         -         62,600      
Economic development -            -         -           -         55,764   55,764      


Capital outlay 29,781      64,608    -           17,000    -         111,389    
Total Expenditures 272,810    224,511  62,600     17,000    55,764   632,685    


NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 39,585      (32,528)  19,233     7             (4,533)    21,764      


FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1, AS RESTATED 192,650    54,360    146,894   774 9,840     404,518    


FUND BALANCES, SEPTEMBER 30 232,235$  21,832    166,127   781         5,307     426,282    
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CITY OF CAMERON, MISSOURI
OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF


REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - PARKS AND RECREATION FUND


_______________________________________________FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015


Over
 (Under)


Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES


Sales tax 153,200$   153,200     164,408 11,208       
Property tax 107,000     108,600     107,098 (1,502)        
Other local taxes 13,000       37,500       37,243 (257)           
Charges for services 5,250         5,250         2,207 (3,043)        
Investment income 500            600            889 289            
Other 4,000         4,000         550 (3,450)        


Total Revenues 282,950     309,150     312,395     3,245         


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Parks and recreation 203,362     210,963     243,029 32,066       
Capital outlay 57,798       146,298     29,781 (116,517)    


Total Expenditures 261,160     357,261     272,810     (84,451)      


REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
   EXPENDITURES 21,790       (48,111)      39,585       87,696       


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Issuance of long-term debt 53,747       53,747       -             (53,747)      


NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 75,537$     5,636         39,585       33,949       


FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1,
   AS RESTATED 192,650


FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 232,235$   
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CITY OF CAMERON, MISSOURI
OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF


REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND


_______________________________________________FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015


Over
 (Under)


Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES


Property tax 122,000$   121,859    122,440 581            
Other local taxes 14,000       39,687      42,209 2,522         
Grants and contributions 8,050         14,967      17,398 2,431         
Investment income 300            200           196 (4)              
Other 6,500         7,000        9,740 2,740         


Total Revenues 150,850     183,713    191,983    8,270         


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Public library 150,064     156,722    159,903 3,181         
Capital outlay 69,478       69,408      64,608 (4,800)       


Total Expenditures 219,542     226,130    224,511    (1,619)       


REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (68,692)      (42,417)     (32,528)     9,889         


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Issuance of long-term debt 64,608       64,608      -            (64,608)     


NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (4,084)$      22,191      (32,528)     (54,719)     


FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1,
   AS RESTATED 54,360


FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 21,832$    
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CITY OF CAMERON, MISSOURI
OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF


REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - MUNICIPAL BAND FUND


_______________________________________________FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015


Over
 (Under)


Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES


Property tax 61,000$     61,000       61,214 214            
Other local taxes 7,000         18,750       19,863 1,113         
Grants and contributions -             -             250 250            
Investment income 480            480            493 13              
Other 50              50              13 (37)             


Total Revenues 68,530       80,280       81,833       1,553         


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Municipal band 63,430       63,430       62,600 (830)           


NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 5,100$       16,850       19,233       2,383         


FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1,
   AS RESTATED 146,894


FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 166,127$   
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CITY OF CAMERON, MISSOURI
OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF


REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - TIF SPECIAL ALLOCATION FUND


_______________________________________________FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015


Over
 (Under)


Original Final Actual Budget
REVENUES


Other local taxes 43,825$    43,825      51,220 7,395         
Investment income 25             25             11 (14)             


Total Revenues 43,850      43,850      51,231       7,381         


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Economic development 43,840 43,840 55,764 11,924       


NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 10$           10             (4,533)        (4,543)        


FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 9,840


FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 5,307$       
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CITY OF CAMERON, MISSOURI
OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF
CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - AGENCY FUND


_______________________________________________FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015


October 1
2014 Additions Reductions


ASSETS
Cash 1,301$       152,467     152,391     1,377       


LIABILITIES
Due to others - court appearance bonds 1,301$       152,467     152,391     1,377       
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE SECTION 
 
 
 
 
 







Hochschild, Bloom & Company LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
Consultants and Advisors 


INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL 
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE 


AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 


GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 


February 5,2016 


Honorable Mayor and City Council 
CITY OF CAMERON, MISSOURI 


We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental ac­
tivities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
the CITY OF CAMERON, MISSOURI (the City) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2015, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 5,2016. 


INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 


In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal con­
trol over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. 


A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow man­
agement or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect 
and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of 
the City's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A sig­
nificant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 


o 15450 South Outer Forty Road, Suite 135, Chesterfield, Missouri 63017-2066,636-532-9525, Fax 636-532-9055 
o 1000 Washington Square, P. O. Box 1457, Washington, Missouri 63090-8457,636-239-4785, Fax 636-239-5448 


www.hbclp.com ~ Pr'lmeGI b I I A,A"odoti,",! ~ 0 a Independent Accounting Firms 
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weak-
nesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any defi-
ciencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 
 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compli-
ance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s inter-
nal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
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Bill 2016-7 
*** First Reading *** 


AGENDA ITEM 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council  
 
FROM: Drew Bontrager, Public Works Director 
 
DATE:  February 16, 2016 
 
RE:  Aquatic Facility Management Agreement  
 
 
 


PURPOSE 
 
The attached bill would authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with the 
Cameron Regional YMCA to operate and manage all aspects of the Cameron Aquatic Facility 
for the 2016 season.   
 


BACKGROUND 
 
This is the twelfth season the Cameron Regional YMCA has operated and managed all 
aspects of the Swimming Pool, including concessions for the Park Board. This has proved to 
be a successful partnership by allowing the Park Board to concentrate on facilities and the 
YMCA providing the management expertise they have for running the program.  The Park 
Board shall pay the YMCA a flat management fee of $15,000 for these services.   
 


 
 


RECOMMENDATION 
 
On January 28,2016, the Park Board reviewed and unanimously approved the attached 
Management Agreement with the Cameron Regional YMCA for the management of the 
Swimming Pool for the 2016 season.   







 


Bill 2016-7                           
 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING A MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT FOR 


THE CAMERON AQUATIC FACILITY BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY 
OF CAMERON, CLINTON AND DeKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI; THE 


CAMERON PARK BOARD; AND, CAMERON REGIONAL YMCA 
 
 WHEREAS, the Cameron Park Board has found it to be in the best interest of the City to 
contract with the YMCA, for a term beginning on the 23rd day of May 2016, and ending on the 
6th day of September 2016, for the management of its daily operations at the Cameron Aquatic 
Facility located at 221 Seminary Street in the City of Cameron, Clinton County, Missouri; and 
 
 WHEREAS, all entities involved have met and reviewed the Management Agreement 
and find it to be in the best interest of the general public; and 
 


WHEREAS, the City of Cameron, the Cameron Park Board and the Cameron Regional 
YMCA have found the arrangements made were satisfactory and all entities are in agreement to 
continue said agreement. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CAMERON, CLINTON AND DeKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI, AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.   The City Manager is hereby authorized to sign the attached Management 
Agreement by and between the City of Cameron, the Cameron Park Board and the Cameron 
Regional YMCA, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, for the Cameron 
Aquatic Facility. 
 
 Section 2.  The Mayor is hereby authorized to sign this Ordinance on behalf of the City of 
Cameron. 
 
 Section 2.  The City Clerk is hereby directed to attest to the Mayor’s signature. 
 


Section 3.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage. 
 
 Passed and approved on first reading this 7th day of March 2016. 


Passed and approved on second reading this _____day of __________2016. 
Passed and approved on third and final reading this _____day of __________2016. 


 
 
        ___________________________ 
Attest:        Mayor Dennis M. Clark 
 
 
_________________________________ 
City Clerk/Finance Clerk 
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Bill 2016-8 and 9 
*** Full Readings *** 


 
AGENDA ITEM 


 
 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From:  Tim Hamilton, Community Development Director 
Date: February 26, 2016 
Re: TIF Agreement – Puckett Redevelopment Project  
 
 
Please find the attached materials related to TIF project MP-L4 Redevelopment Plan for your 
consideration.  On February 17th, 2016 the TIF Commission held a Public hearing on the 
redevelopment plan proposed by Michelle Puckett. This hearing was continued from the original 
date of February 16, 2016. The Commission voted (6 in favor, 3 opposed) to recommend 
approval of the TIF Agreement. This project will be a PILOT only TIF.  
  
Options: 
 


1. Approve the Ordinance accepting the TIF Plan and the Ordinance approving the 
Development Agreement.  


2. Take no action at this time. 







 


MP-L4 TIF Plan 1  
 


Bill 2016-8 


AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF CAMERON, CLINTON 
AND DeKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI MAKING CERTAIN 


FINDINGS WITH RESPECT TO AND APPROVING THE MP-
L4 REDEVELOPMENT PLAN, THE REDEVELOPMENT 
AREA AND THE REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT; AND 


OTHER ACTIONS RELATED THERETO 
 (Puckett – Tax Increment Financing) 


 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cameron, Missouri (the “City”) established 


the Tax Increment Financing Commission of Cameron, Missouri (the “TIF Commission”) 
pursuant to the Real Property Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act, Sections 99.800 to 
99.865 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended (the “TIF Act”); and 


WHEREAS, in compliance with the TIF Act, the TIF Commission, after considered of a 
redevelopment plan entitled “MP-L4 Redevelopment Plan” (the “TIF Plan”) and the holding of a 
public hearing thereon at which all interested parties had an opportunity to be heard and at which 
the TIF Commission heard and considered all protests and objections concerning the TIF Plan, 
the Redevelopment Area, the Redevelopment Project and Redevelopment Project Area, 
recommended, pursuant to Resolution 2016-01 adopted on February 17, 2016, the approval 
thereof; and 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
CAMERON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 


Section 1.  The City Council hereby finds, with respect to the TIF Plan presented with 
this Ordinance (a copy of which is on file in the records of the City Clerk), that: 


a. The existing conditions of the Redevelopment Area described in the TIF Plan are a fair 
depiction of the Redevelopment Area and cause the Redevelopment Area on the whole to be a 
“blighted area” as defined in the TIF Act.  These conditions include improper subdivision, 
obsolete platting, grading deficiencies and lack of proper placement of utilities and further such 
conditions also result in economic underutilization and an inability to generate reasonable taxes; 


b. the Redevelopment Area has not been subject to growth and development through 
investment by private enterprise and would not reasonably be anticipated to be developed 
without the adoption of tax increment financing (the Developer Affidavit is attached as Exhibit 8 
to the TIF Plan); 


c. the TIF Plan does not include the initial development or redevelopment of any 
gambling establishment; 


d. the TIF Plan conforms to the comprehensive plan for development of the City as a 
whole; 


e. the Redevelopment Project Area is directly and substantially benefited by the 
Redevelopment Project; 







 


MP-L4 TIF Plan 2  
 


f. the estimated date, which shall not be more than 23 years from the adoption of the 
Ordinance approving Redevelopment Project, of completion of the Redevelopment Project has 
been stated in the TIF Plan; 


g. there are no relocations of businesses and residences anticipated nor is the use of 
eminent domain anticipated; and 


h. a cost-benefit analysis showing the economic impact of the TIF Plan has been included 
in the TIF Plan which provides sufficient information for the TIF Commission to evaluate 
whether the Redevelopment Project as proposed is financially feasible. 


Section 2. The TIF Plan is hereby approved pursuant to the TIF. 


Section 3. The Redevelopment Area is approved and designated as a redevelopment area 
pursuant to the TIF Act. 


Section 4. The Redevelopment Project is approved as a redevelopment project and the 
costs of Redevelopment Project designated as reimbursable in the TIF Plan are approved as 
reimbursable from tax increment financing revenues pursuant to the TIF Plan and the TIF Act. 


Section 5. Tax increment financing in accordance with the TIF Plan is approved and: 


(1) After the total equalized assessed valuation of the taxable real property in a 
Redevelopment Project Area exceeds the certified total initial equalized assessed 
valuation of the taxable real property in such Redevelopment Project Area, the ad 
valorem taxes and payments in lieu of taxes, if any, arising from the levies upon taxable 
real property in such Redevelopment Project Area by taxing districts and tax rates 
determined in the manner provided in subsection 2 of the Section 99.855 of the TIF Act 
as adjusted by the TIF Plan each year after the effective date of the Ordinance adopting 
tax increment financing for a Redevelopment Project Area until the Reimbursable Project 
Costs pursuant to the TIF Plan have been paid, shall be divided as follows: 


- That portion of taxes, penalties and interest levied upon each taxable lot, 
block, tract, or parcel of real property which is attributable to the initial equalized 
assessed value of each such taxable lot, block, tract, or parcel of real property in a 
Redevelopment Project Area, shall be allocated to, and when collected shall be 
paid by the County Collector to, the respective affected taxing districts in the 
manner required by law in the absence of the adoption of tax increment allocation 
financing; 


- The payments in lieu of taxes attributable to the increase in the current 
equalized assessed valuation of each taxable lot, block, tract, or parcel of real 
property in each Redevelopment Project Area (and any applicable penalty and 
interest) over and above the initial equalized assessed value of each such unit of 
property in each Redevelopment Project Area shall be allocated to, and when 
collected shall be paid to, the City Treasurer who shall deposit such payment in 
lieu of taxes into a special fund called the “Special Allocation Fund” of the City 
for the purpose of paying Reimbursable Project Costs under the TIF Plan, all 
pursuant to the TIF Plan.  Payments in lieu of taxes which are due and owing shall 
constitute a lien against the real estate of the redevelopment project from which 







 


MP-L4 TIF Plan 3  
 


they are derived and shall be collected in the same manner as the real property 
tax, including the assessment of penalties and interest where applicable.  The City 
may, in an Ordinance, pledge the funds in the special allocation fund for the 
payment of such costs and provide for the collection of payments in lieu of taxes, 
the lien of which may be foreclosed in the same manner as a special assessment 
lien as provided in Section 88.861, RSMo.  No part of the current equalized 
assessed valuation of each lot, block, tract, or parcel of property in a 
Redevelopment Project Area attributable to any increase above the total initial 
equalized assessed value of such properties shall be used in calculating the 
general state school aid formula provided for in Section 163.031, RSMo., until 
such time as all reimbursable redevelopment costs have been paid as provided for 
in the TIF Act. 


2. In addition to the payments in lieu of taxes described in Section 99.845.1(2) of 
the TIF Act, the total additional revenues from sales taxes generated by economic 
activities in the Redevelopment Project Area, as described in Section 99.845.3 of the TIF 
Act as adjusted by the TIF Plan, over the amount of sales taxes generated by an 
establishment in the calendar year prior to the effective date of the Ordinance adopting 
tax increment financing for the Redevelopment Project Area (or if such business relocates 
to the Redevelopment Area, its relocation to the Redevelopment Area as set forth in the 
TIF Plan), shall be allocated as set forth in Section 99.845.3 of the TIF Act and the TIF 
Plan. 


Section 6. The officers and employees of the City are hereby authorized to take such 
actions and execute such documents as are necessary or desirable to effectuate the intent of this 
Ordinance. 


Section 7. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 
approval. 


INTRODUCED IN WRITING, READ BY TITLE TWO TIMES, PASSED AND 
APPROVED THIS 1st DAY OF MARCH, 2016. 


 


____________________________________ 
      Dennis M. Clark, Mayor 


Attest: 


____________________________________ 
Barbara J. O’Connor, City Clerk/Finance Clerk  


REVIEWED BY: 


 


____________________________ 
Mark Gaugh, City Manager 
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Bill 2016-8 and 9 
*** Full Readings *** 


 
AGENDA ITEM 


 
 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From:  Tim Hamilton, Community Development Director 
Date: February 26, 2016 
Re: TIF Agreement – Puckett Redevelopment Project  
 
 
Please find the attached materials related to TIF project MP-L4 Redevelopment Plan for your 
consideration.  On February 17th, 2016 the TIF Commission held a Public hearing on the 
redevelopment plan proposed by Michelle Puckett. This hearing was continued from the original 
date of February 16, 2016. The Commission voted (6 in favor, 3 opposed) to recommend 
approval of the TIF Agreement. This project will be a PILOT only TIF.  
  
Options: 
 


1. Approve the Ordinance accepting the TIF Plan and the Ordinance approving the 
Development Agreement.  


2. Take no action at this time. 







 


  


Bill 2016-9 
 


AN ORDINANCE SELECTING THE DEVELOPER FOR THE 
MP-L4 REDEVELOPMENT PLAN AND APPROVING THE 


DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR THE 
REDEVELOPMENT AREA THEREUNDER; AND 


AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF DOCUMENTS AND 
THE TAKING OF ACTIONS RELATING THERETO 


(Puckett – Tax Increment Financing) 
 
WHEREAS, the Real Property Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act, Sections 


99.800 to 99.865 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended (the “Act”), authorizes cities to 
undertake redevelopment projects in blighted, conservation or economic development areas, as 
defined in the Act; and 
 


WHEREAS, the City of Cameron, Missouri (“City”) has duly created the Tax Increment 
Financing Commission of Cameron, Missouri (the “TIF Commission”); and 
 


WHEREAS, the City Council, after recommendation by the TIF Commission, approved, 
pursuant to Ordinance 5918 dated March 7, 2016 (“TIF Ordinance”), a redevelopment plan titled 
the “MP-L4 Redevelopment Plan" (the "TIF Plan") pursuant to and in accordance with the Act; 
and 


 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the City desires to select the Developer and the City 


and the Developer desire to enter into a redevelopment agreement setting forth the respective 
rights and obligations of the City and the Developer with regard to the redevelopment of the 
Redevelopment Area (the “Development Agreement”); 
 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CAMERON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 


Section 1. The City Council selects KMB PROPERTIES, L.L.C. as the developer to 
implement the TIF Plan subject to the execution of a mutually agreeable Development 
Agreement. 


 
Section 2. The City Council further finds and determines that it is desirable to enter 


into a Development Agreement with the Developer to implement the Redevelopment Project and 
redevelop the Redevelopment Area pursuant to the TIF Plan, the Act and the Development 
Agreement, and accordingly, the Development Agreement, in substantially the form attached 
hereto as Exhibit A, is approved with such changes therein as shall be approved by the officers 
of the City executing the same. 
 


Section 3. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute, on behalf of the City, the 
Development Agreement between the City and the Developer, and the City Clerk is hereby 
authorized to attest to the Development Agreement and to affix the seal of the City thereto.  







 


  


 
Section 4. The officers, agents and employees of the City are hereby authorized to 


execute all documents and take such steps as they deem necessary and advisable in order to carry 
out and perform the purpose of this Ordinance. 
 
 Section 5. The sections of this Ordinance shall be severable.  If any section of this 
Ordinance is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the remaining sections 
shall remain valid, unless the court finds that: (a) the valid sections are so essential to and 
inseparably connected with and dependent upon the void section that it cannot be presumed that 
the City Council has or would have enacted the valid sections without the void ones; and (b) the 
valid sections, standing alone, are incomplete and are incapable of being executed in accordance 
with the legislative intent. 
 


Section 6. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of 
its passage. 


 
 INTRODUCED IN WRITING, READ BY TITLE TWO TIMES, PASSED AND 
APPROVED THIS 7th DAY OF MARCH 2016. 
 
 
 
  __________________________ 
  Dennis M. Clark, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Barbara O’Connor, City Clerk  
 
 
 


REVIEWED BY: 
 
____________________________ 
Mark Gaugh, City Manager 


 
 







 


  


EXHIBIT A 
 


DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 


[On file in the City Clerk’s Office] 
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Bill 2016-10 
*** First Reading *** 


Agenda Item 
 


 
To: Mayor and City Council 
 
From: Tim Hamilton 
 
Date: February 26, 2016 
 
Re:      Bill amending Division 2 – “Dogs”, Section 5-101 to include language establishing 


guidelines for determining dangerous dogs.  
 
____________________________________________________________ 
 
Please find the attached Bill for your consideration. Staff has been working with the Planning 
and Zoning Commission for several months on amending the current Dangerous Dog Ordinance.  
There is currently no language within Section 5-101 outlining guidelines for the identification of 
dangerous dogs. Staff has included these and other provisions to aid staff in the implementation 
of the Dangerous Dog Ordinance.   
 
Options: 
 


1. Approve the Bill as submitted, 
2. Take no action at this time. 







 


Bill 2015-10 
 


AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF CAMERON, CLINTON AND 
DeKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI AMENDING THE CITY CODE OF 


ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 5 HEALTH AND SANITATION, ARTICLE IV, 
ANIMALS, DIVISION 2 DOGS, REPEALING AND REPLACING 
EXISTING SECTION  5-101. TO ESTABLISH GUIDELINES FOR 


IDENTIFYING AND CONTROLLING DANGEROUS DOGS 
 
 WHEREAS, public notice regarding the above petition was published in the Cameron 
Citizen-Observer, a newspaper of general circulation, on September 24, 2015.  A Public Hearing 
concerning said matter was held at City Hall in Cameron Missouri at 6:00 p.m. on October 12, 
2015; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Cameron Planning and Zoning Commission has met; considered said 
request and voted unanimously on recommending approval of the amendments by the City 
Council.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CAMERON, CLINTON AND DeKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 


Section 1.  CHAPTER 5 – HEALTH AND SANITATION; ARTICLE IV 
ANIMALS; DIVISION 2 – DOGS Section 5-101. is hereby repealed and replaced 
with the follows: 


 
Sec. 5-101.  Restraint of vicious or dangerous dogs.  
Any person in the city who shall own, keep or harbor a vicious or dangerous dog 
shall keep such dog muzzled securely, tied and otherwise effectively restrained 
when ordered to do so by either the city manager or his/her designee, or the chief 
of police. No person or owner shall harbor, maintain or allow to be in or upon any 
premises occupied by him or her or under his or her charge or control any dog 
which the Animal Control Officer reasonably suspects of being in possession of 
one of the following traits or behaviors: 


 
1) Any animal which is inherently dangerous because of past behavior, 


violations of this chapter, or the nature of the animal in relation to persons or 
domestic animals.  
 


2) Having inflicted a severe or fatal injury on a human being on public or private 
property. "Severe injury" means any physical injury, resulting directly from 
an animal's bite or strike which results in death, broken bones, lacerations 
requiring stitches, or hospitalization. The victim receiving severe injuries 
must provide the supervisor of animal control a signed physician's statement 
documenting injury and treatment qualifying such as a severe injury or sign 
an authorization for release of such statement. 







 


 
3) Having killed a domestic animal, livestock, or poultry without provocation, 


while off the owner's property.  
 
4) Animals owned or harbored primarily or in part for the purpose of fighting or 


any animal trained for fighting.  
 
5) Having bitten a human being, without provocation, on public or private 


property other than the property of the owner.  
 
6) Having bitten while on the owner's property without provocation, a human 


being other than the owner or a member of the owner's family who normally 
resides at the place where the animal is kept.  


 
7) When unprovoked, chases or approaches a person upon the streets, sidewalks, 


or any public grounds, or private property other than that property of the 
owner, in a menacing fashion or apparent attitudes of attack, regardless of 
whether or not a person is injured by the animal. 


 
8) Possessing a known propensity, tendency or disposition to attack unprovoked, 


to cause injury, or to otherwise threaten the safety of human beings or 
domestic animals. (Ord. No. 4521, 6-3-97).  


  
a. Leash and muzzle. 


No person shall permit a dangerous dog to go outside its kennel or pen 
unless such dangerous dog is securely leashed with a leash no longer 
than four feet in length. No person shall permit a dangerous dog to be 
kept on a chain, rope or other type of leash outside its kennel or pen 
unless a person is in physical control of the leash. Such dangerous 
dogs may not be leashed to inanimate objects such as trees, posts, 
buildings, etc. In addition, all dangerous dogs on a leash outside the 
dog's kennel must be muzzled by a muzzling device sufficient to 
prevent such dangerous dog from biting other persons or other 
animals. 
 


b. Confinement.  
All dangerous dogs shall be securely confined indoors or in a securely 
enclosed and locked pen or kennel, except when leashed and muzzled 
as provided in Sec. 5-101 B. Such pen, kennel or structure must have 
secure sides and a secure top attached to the sides. All structures used 
to confine dangerous dogs must be locked with a key or combination 
lock when such dogs are within the structure. Such structure must have 
a secure bottom or floor attached to the sides of the pen or the sides of 
the pen must be embedded in the ground no less than two feet. All 
structures erected to house dangerous dogs must comply with all 
zoning and building regulations of the city. All such structures must be 







 


adequately lighted and ventilated and kept in a clean and sanitary 
condition.  
No dangerous dogs may be kept on a porch, patio or in any part of a 
house or structure that would allow the dog to exit such building on its 
own volition. In addition, no such dog may be kept in a house or 
structure when the windows are open or when screen windows or 
screen doors are the only obstacles preventing the dog from exiting the 
structure.  


 
c. Warning signs.  


Any person owning, keeping or harboring dangerous dogs within the 
city shall, effective May 1, 2016, display in a prominent place on their 
premises a sign easily readable by the public using the words "Beware of 
Dangerous Dog." In addition, a similar sign is required to be posted on 
the kennel or pen of such dog.  


 
d. Registration.  


Owners of dangerous dogs within the corporate limits of the city shall 
be required to register their dogs with the animal control officer as a 
"dangerous dog" effective May 1, 2016, or upon the determination that 
the dog is a dangerous animal by the animal control officer, or a court 
of competent jurisdiction. The registration shall be accompanied by a 
registration fee in the amount provided in the city schedule of fees and 
charges. 


 
e. Identification photographs.  


Any person owning, keeping or harboring dangerous dogs must, 
effective May 1, 2016, provide to the animal control department two 
color photographs of the dog clearly showing the color and 
approximate size of the dog.  


 
f. Duty to report changes in animal's status.  


Any person owning, keeping or harboring dangerous dogs must within 
ten days of the incident, report the following information in writing to 
the animal control department as required hereinafter:  


The removal from the city or death of a dangerous dog. 
The birth of offspring of a dangerous dog. 
The new address of a dangerous dog owner should the owner 
move within the corporate city limits.  
The deletion, expiration or change in liability insurance policies 
maintained as required in this section.  


 
g. Sale and transfer restricted.  


No person shall sell, barter, or in any other way dispose of a dangerous 
dog registered with the city to any person within the city unless the 
recipient person resides permanently in the same household and on the 







 


same premises as the registered owner of such dog; provided, that the 
registered owner of a dangerous dog may sell or otherwise dispose of a 
dangerous dog or offspring of such dog to persons who do not reside 
within the city.  


 
h. Liability insurance required.  


The owner or keeper of a dangerous dog shall present to the animal 
control department proof that the owner or keeper has procured public 
liability insurance in a single incident in the amount of at least 
$300,000 for bodily injury to or death of any person or for damage to 
property owned by any persons which may result from the ownership of 
such dog. The policy must stay in effect while the dangerous dog is 
maintained in the city. This policy shall contain a provision requiring 
the city to be notified by the insurance company of any cancellation, 
termination or expiration of the policy.  


 
i. Violations and penalties.  


Any person violating or permitting the violation of any provision of 
this section shall upon conviction in municipal court be fined a sum 
not less than $500.00. In addition to the fine imposed, the court may 
sentence the defendant to imprisonment for a period not to exceed 90 
days. In addition to all other applicable penalties for violation of this 
chapter, upon violation of this article the court shall order the 
registration of the subject dog revoked and the animal removed from 
the city. Should the defendant refuse to remove the dangerous dog 
from the city, the municipal court judge shall find the defendant owner 
in contempt and order the immediate confiscation and impoundment of 
the dog. Each day that a violation of this section continues shall be 
deemed a separate offense. Any person who violates this section shall 
be responsible for all foregoing penalties and all other expenses 
including shelter, food, handling, veterinary care and testimony 
necessitated by the enforcement of this section.  


 
  j. Appeals.  


Any person who has been found guilty by Municipal Court of 
harboring, or owning a dangerous dog as defined herein may have their 
appeal heard in District Court.  


(Code 1970, § 4-12) State law reference— Keeping other 
dangerous animals, RSMo 578.023) 


 
Section 2.  The Mayor is authorized to sign this ordinance approving it on behalf of the City. 
 
Section 3.  The City Clerk is directed to attest to the Mayor’s signature. 
 
Section 4.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 
approval. 







 


 
Passed and approved on first reading this 7th day of March 2016.  


 Passed and approved on second reading this    day of   2016. 
 Passed and approved on third and final reading this    day of    2016. 
 
             
        _______________________ 


Mayor Dennis M. Clark  
ATTEST:   
 __________________________ 
City Clerk/Finance Clerk 
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Bill 2016-11 
*** First Reading *** 


      


AGENDA ITEM 


DATE:  February 19, 2016 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:  Tim Hamilton, Community Development Director. 
 
RE:  Comprehensive Plan Update – Final Draft 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
This document is a revision of the 2008 Plan composed by Bucher, Willis, and Ratliff titled 
Comprehensive Plan 2030.  The majority of this document is essentially the same as the 2008 
Plan, with the exception of the inclusion of four additional Appendices.  Due to the size of the 
document, only Chapter 4 has been included in your packets, but the entire Comprehensive Plan 
2030 is available from Staff at Council Request. The language, as well as numeric data presented 
in Chapters 2 through 4 has been updated to reflect conditions as of 2015. Several of the goals 
presented herein have remained unchanged from the 2008 Plan. This is due in part to external 
factors which caused a period of delayed implementation since the 2008 document was adopted. 
As a result, the Plan’s original objectives derived from the public input received in at that time 
remain relevant, and implementation is ongoing.   
 
With this update, staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission agree that the current document 
and its goals will remain relevant for the next three to five years, at which time the public input 
process (focus groups and stakeholder interviews) would begin again for a new document.  
 
Action: 
 


1. Approve the Bill amending the document Comprehensive Plan 2030 as recommended. 
2. Send the document back to the Planning and Zoning Commission for additional changes. 
3. Make no changes at this time.  


 
 
 
 
 
 







 


 


Bill 2016-11        
 


AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF CAMERON, CLINTON AND 


DeKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI ADOPTING UPDATES TO THE CITY 


OF CAMERON COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 2030 
 


WHEREAS, the City of Cameron has a duly constituted Planning and Zoning 


Commission as required by law; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has caused a review and update of 


the Comprehensive Plan to be prepared for said City as provided in 89.360 RSMo; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Plan Update includes revised demographic and 


statistical data in four additional appendices, along with general updates of the text to reflect 


current conditions; and 


 


WHEREAS, proper notice was published in the Cameron Citizen-Observer prior to the 


public  hearing of the Planning and Zoning Commission on December 11, 2014; and 


 


WHEREAS, the public hearing was continued through February 8, 2016; and 


 


WHEREAS, a quorum of the Planning and Zoning Commission was present to 


constitute a meeting and hold a public hearing on the Comprehensive Plan 2030; and 


 


WHEREAS, it was moved and seconded and carried by a majority of the full 


membership of the Planning and Zoning Commission on February 8, 2016 to recommend the 


updates be adopted and included in the City of Cameron Comprehensive Plan 2030. 


 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


CAMERON, CLINTON AND DeKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 


 


Section 1. The Comprehensive Plan, which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, 


including all maps and other matters identified therein, is hereby adopted. 


 


Section 2. The Mayor is authorized to sign this ordinance, approving it on behalf of the 


City of Cameron. 


 


Section 3. The City Clerk is directed to attest to the Mayor’s signature. 


 


Section 4. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 


approval. 


 


Passed and approved on first reading this 7
th


 day of March 2016. 


Passed and approved on second reading this _____day of __________2016. 


Passed and approved on third and final reading this _____day of __________2016. 


 


        ___________________________ 


Attest:        Mayor Dennis M. Clark 


_________________________________ 


City Clerk/Finance Clerk 
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Bill 2016-12 
*** First Reading *** 


 
 AGENDA ITEM 


 
TO:  Mayor and City Council  
FROM: Drew Bontrager, Public Works Director 
DATE:   March 7, 2016 
RE:  APAC-Missouri, Inc STP-7000(105) and STP-7000(106) Award of Contract  
 


PURPOSE 
 
The attached bill would authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement with the APAC-Missouri for the 
STP-7000(105) and STP-7000(106) project.  
 
DISCUSSION & FINANCING  
 
In the 2030 Comprehensive Plan pedestrian access on N. Walnut and US 36 overpass was identified by 
Cameron citizens as a priority.  With the number of pedestrians utilizing this route coupled with fatalities in 
the past the City Council continually outlined this as a priority. Since 2007 there has been continual 
conversation and work with MoDOT on how we could construct these improvements.  Although, funding 
was always the major obstacle until grant funding through the Transportation Enhancement grants was 
announced in 2012.   
 
Transportation Enhancement grants are federal funds available to local public agencies though a competitive 
grant process for transportation related projects.   Public agencies are reimbursed for project costs at a rate of 
80%, up to a maximum of $240,000.00 per grant, with a minimum 20% match.   
 
In 2013 we were notified of our grant award and entered into an agreement with the Missouri Highways and 
Transportation Commission to accept the monies and complete the project. There are officially two separate 
projects and project numbers, as we had to split the project in order to obtain enough funding. The first 
project is the construction of a five-foot wide sidewalk from Grand Avenue north to the US 36 overpass with 
the grant amount totaling $140,705.  The second portion requested and received the maximum funding 
amount of $240,000.  This is for the construction of a cantilevered pedestrian access at the US 36 bridge 
overpass.    
 
This project was initially bid as two separate projects last year in hopes of attracting more local contractors. 
However, we did not receive any local contractors and the bids came in higher than anticipated. 
Consequently, we repackaged the project as one bid and re-advertised. This bid opening occurred on 
February 4, 2016. We received a total of four (4) bids, with the lowest bid from APAC-Missouri with a low 
bid of $367,967.34 for STP-7000(105) and a low bid of $311,444.41 for STP-7000(106). Our match would 
be $127,967.34 for STP-7000(105) and $170,739.41 for STP-7000(106). 
 
APAC-Missouri, Inc has met all the requirements and was the best and lowest bid. Transystems has reviewed 
all submitted information and recommends approval. Additionally, MoDot also conducts a thorough review 
since this project utilizes federal and state grant monies. The MoDOT Concurrence of Award Letter is also 
included for your review.  Once APAC is issued the Notice to Proceed they will have 150 calendar days to 
complete the project.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
We are recommending the Council adopt the attached bill authorizing the City Manager to execute the 
agreement with APAC-Missouri, Inc for the construction of the STP-7000(105) and STP-7000(106) projects.  







 
Bill 2016-12                                 
 


AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER OF THE CITY 
OF CAMERON, CLINTON AND DeKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI TO 


ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH APAC-MISSOURI, INC. FOR THE US 
36 NORTH WALNUT STREET OVERPASS, STP-7000(105) AND THE 
PEDESTRIAN ACCESS ALONG NORTH WALNUT STREET FROM 
GRAND AVENUE TO BALDWIN ROAD, STP-7000(106) PROJECT 


 
 WHEREAS, the City of Cameron has determined pedestrian access along Walnut Street 
and at the US 36 Overpass a priority and applied for and was successful in obtaining Transportation 
Enhancement grants in order to complete the improvements; and 
 


WHEREAS, the City of Cameron did advertise for bids for the STP-7000(105) & STP-
7000 (106) Project and received a total of four (4) bids; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Staff, Transystems and MoDOT having reviewed the bids received and 
determining APAC-Missouri, Inc. has met all the requirements and was the best bid with a low bid 
of $367,967.34 for STP-7000(105) and a low bid of $311,444.41 for STP-7000(106)  recommends 
approval of an Agreement for Services with APAC-Missouri, Inc. 
 


NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CAMERON, CLINTON AND DeKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with APAC-
Missouri, Inc., for the STP-7000(105) and STP-7000(106) Project all as per the agreement attached 
hereto and made a part hereof. 
 
 Section 2. The City Manager is authorized to execute any ancillary documents associated 
with this project.  Any change orders exceeding ten percent of base bid will be presented to City 
Council for approval.  
 


Section 3. The Mayor is hereby authorized to sign this Ordinance on behalf of the City of 
Cameron.  
  
 Section 4.  The City Clerk is hereby directed to attest to the Mayor’s signature. 
 


Section 5.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage. 
 
 Passed and approved on first reading this 7th day of March 2016. 


Passed and approved on second reading this _____day of __________2016. 
Passed and approved on third and final reading this _____day of __________2016. 


 
 
        ___________________________ 
Attest:        Mayor Dennis M. Clark 
 
_________________________________ 
City Clerk/Finance Clerk 
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		Section 4.  The City Clerk is hereby directed to attest to the Mayor’s signature.








   Resolution 2016-4 
 


AGENDA ITEM 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council  
 
FROM: Barbara J. O’Connor, CMC, City Clerk/Finance Clerk 
 
DATE: March 3, 2016  
 
RE:   Records Destruction 
 
Issue: Each year records become available for destruction according to the Missouri 
Municipal Records Retention Manual.  This Manual is made available to us by the 
Missouri Secretary of State’s Office and is updated on an annual basis by the Missouri 
Local Records Board.  This year, as in previous years, staff has located records that no 
longer possess administrative, legal, fiscal or historical significance and therefore are 
eligible for destruction.  The process frees up space for current and future records as well 
as un-cluttering file cabinets, which will benefit in researching existing records.  Once the 
destruction has taken place, you will receive a “Certifications of Records Destroyed” 
from me, thereby establishing a permanent list of the destroyed records.  The Police 
Department and Municipal Court have asked that their eligible records be destroyed 
according to the Records Retention Manual also. 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff recommends approval of this resolution for records destruction. 
 
 
 
 







Resolution 2016-4 


 


A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY CLERK OF THE CITY OF 


CAMERON, CLINTON AND DeKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI TO 


DESTROY CERTAIN RECORDS IN ACCORDANCE WITH 


APPLICABLE RETENTION SCHEDULES 
 


 WHEREAS, the 73
rd


 General Assembly passed the law establishing Records 


Management and Archives Services as a division of the Office of Secretary of State; and 


 


 WHEREAS, Senate Bill No. 376 passed by the 76
th


 General Assembly extended the 


Records Management Law to local governments of Missouri, which law gave the Secretary of 


State responsibility for implementation of the program; and 


 


 WHEREAS, the Missouri Local Records Board approved the first Municipal Records 


Manual in 1973, and which Manual has been amended from time to time as needed. 


 


 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 


CITY OF CAMERON, CLINTON AND DeKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI, AS 


FOLLOWS: 


 


 Section 1.  The City of Cameron adopts the Missouri Municipal Records Manual as set 


forth by the Secretary of State. 


 


 Section 2.  The City Clerk, on recommendation of the appropriate Department Heads, is 


hereby authorized and directed to destroy the records listed on Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 


 


Section 3.  On completion, the City Clerk is requested to provide the City Council 


certificates, attesting to the execution of this directive. 


 


 Passed and approved this 7
th


 day of March 2016. 


 


 


              


        Mayor Dennis M. Clark 


ATTEST: 


 


 


      


City Clerk/Finance Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 
EXHIBIT A 


Records Destruction List 
 


File Name Creation Retention Discard Retention 


Schedule 
Lower Level Vault     


Accounts Payable Invoices 2009-10 5 2016 GS 007 


Accounts Payable Posting Journals 2009-10 5 2016 GS 007 


Business Licenses 2012-13 2 2016 GS 055 


Cigarette Tax 2010 5 2016  


Code Enforcement Records 2009-10 5 2016  


County Tax Registers 2009 6 2016 0753 


Daily Tally Sheets 2009-10 5 2016 GS 011 


Dog Tag receipts 2010 5 2016 0105 


General Ledger Journal Entries 2009-10 5 2016 0703 


General Ledger Posting Journals 2009-10 5 2016 0703 


General Ledger Revenue and Expense Reports 2005-06 10 2016 0703 


1099 Miscellaneous Copies 2010 5 2016  


Missouri One Call Locate Requests 2010 5 2016 1614 


Month End Reports G/L 2009-10 5 2016 0703 


Paid Tax Reciepts 2008-09 6 2016 0753 


Payroll Reports 2010 5 2016 GS 068 


Personal and Real Estate Tax reports 2008-09 6 2016 GS 007 


Police Department Schedule/comp time logs 2010 5 2016 GS 072 


ATF Over-time requests 2010 5 2016  


Utility bill registers 2009-10 5 2016 GS 007 


Utility bill stubs 20010 5 2016 GS 011 


Tax Supplements 2007-09 5 2016 0753 


Tax Abatements 2007-09 5 2016 0753 


Tax Penalty Calculation 2007-09 5 2016 0753 


City Credit Card Usage Reports 2010 5 2016  


TIFF Billing information 1998-02  2016  


Employee I-9’s terminated employees 2014 + 1 2016 GS031 


Old Media disks (back-ups etc.)   2016  


     


Bid Files     


City sold – 1983 Fire Truck – Richie Bros 2005 10 2016 GS 055 


City sold – 2002 Chevy Impala wrecked – Scotty’s 2005 10 2016 GS 055 


City Sold – 2003 Trailer – sold to City of Albany 2005 10 2016 GS 055 


Folder/Inserter (Avcorp) – Administration Dept 2004 10 2015 GS 055 


Fax Machine – Brother – Administration Dept 2004 10 2015 GS 055 


Pumper Truck – Fire Dept 2005 10 2016 GS 055 


15 KV Aluminum cable (10,000 ft) – Electric Dept 2005 10 2016 GS 055 







Hwy 69 Lighting – Electric Dept 2005 10 2016 GS 055 


Mowers – Park Dept – All Rejected 2010 10 2016 GS 055 


Police Car – 2006 Crown Vic 2005 10 2016 GS 055 


CAD program for Police Dispatch 2005 5 2016 GS 055 


Police Car – 2005 Crown Vic 2004 10 2015 GS 055 


Radio’s – Homeland Security – Police Dept 2005 10 2016 GS 055 


Police SUV – 2004 Dodge Durango 2005 10 2016 GS 055 


GIS RFQ’s 2004 2004 10 2015 GS 055 


Hayground – Wal-Mart tract – no bids rec’d 2009 5 2015 GS 055 


Driveway/Drainage Construction at Electric Dept 


poleyard – 2010 – no bids rec’d 


2010 5 2016 GS 055 


RFQ – Architect and Engineering – Electric – no bids 


rec’d 


2010 


 


5 2016 GS 055 


Diagonal Boring on Third Street - Electric 2005 10 2016 GS 055 


Mowing – Water Plant 2005 10 2016 GS 055 


Street Milling - 2005 2005 10 2016 GS 055 


Sidewalk/Curb & Gutter  2005 10 2016 GS 055 


Asphalt Overlay – Third Street 2005 10 2016 GS 055 


Chlorine Dioxide Proposals – Water Plant 2005 10 2016 GS 055 


     


Legal     


Accident Reports – copies  2009 5 2016 GS 0052.1 


Incident Reports – copies 2009 5 2016 GS 0052.1 


James and Jan Gordon – Sewer back-up 1993 22 2016 GS 0052.1 


Fred Buck – Sewer back-up 1993 22 2016 GS 0052.1 


James Boyle – Police Chase 1993 22 2016 GS 0052.1 


Larry & Christopher Duvall – dog damaged vehicle 1993 22 2016 GS 0052.1 


Shirley Eteeyan – slip and fall 1993 22 2016 GS 0052.1 


Larry Sloan 1993 22 2016 GS 0052.1 


     


Alpha Files     


BBQ Contest 2005 2005 10 2016 1304 


Correspondence – Misc. Outside sources 2010 5 2016 GS 012 


Financial Disclosures 2010 5 2016 0714 


Mediacom 2009 & 2010 2010 5 2016  


Parade/Street Closings 2013 2 2016  


Surveys – completed by City 2010 5 2016 GS012 


Requests for Information 2010 5 2016 GS066 


     


Contract Files     


Akin, Gordon & Cowger – Engineers for Soccer Fields 2005 10 2016 GS 060 


APAC – Asphalt Overlay 2005 10 2016 GS 060 


Aurthur, Bill – Agriculture Lease 2005 10 2016 GS 060 


Bucher, Willis & Ratliff – Airport Improvments 2005 10 2016 GS 060 


Cameron R-1 School – Football Field Turf 2005 10 2016 GS 060 


Cooper, Bernie  - Agriculture Lease 2005 10 2016 GS 060 







Credit Applications/Charge Acct Applications 2005 10 2016 GS 060 


Dorton Tree Service 2005 10 2016 GS 060 


Duke Construction – Crossroads Corporate Center 2004 10 2015 GS 060 


Firemaster Fire – 2005 Freightliner 2005 10 2016 GS 060 


Gallatin Sand & Gravel – Soccer Field 2005 10 2016 GS 060 


Herzog – 3
rd


 St Overlay 2005 10 2016 GS 060 


Hoggatt Excavating – 8
th


 St Reconstruction 2005 10 2016 GS 060 


Ascom Hasler – Postage Meter 2005 10 2016 GS 060 


Information Technologies – CAD System 2005 10 2016 GS 060 


Marsh, Espey & Riggs – Auditors 2005 10 2016 GS 060 


Midland GIS – original GIS mapping 2005 10 2016 GS 060 


Midwest Wheel Companies 2005 10 2016 GS 060 


MoDOT – Business 36 & Ensign Trace – High Mast 


lighting 


2005 10 2016 GS 060 


MoDOT – BB Hwy & Evergreen improvements 2005 10 2016 GS 060 


MoDOT – BB Hwy Lighting 2003 10 2014 GS 060 


MPUA – Apprenticeship 2005 10 2016 GS 060 


P & P Quality Concrete 2005 10 2016 GS 060 


Shafer, Kline & Warren – sign inventory  2005 10 2016 GS 060 


Shull, William – IRS levy release 2005 10 2016 GS 060 


School Resource Officer (SRO) 2002-2003 2004 10 2015 GS 060 


Tim’s Lawn Care – Water Plant mowing 2005 10 2016 GS 060 


YMCA – Swimming Pool  2005 10 2016 GS 060 


YMCA – Youth Sports & Rec Services 2005 10 2016 GS 060 


     


Personnel Drawer     


Work Comp Claim – Ed Becker – left arm 2005 10 2016 1110 


Work Comp – Richard Bennett – back injury 2005 10 2016 1110 


Work Comp – Andy Clark– assault 2005 10 2016 1110 


Work Comp – Don Fritz – (fire) debris landed on head 2005 10 2016 1110 


Work Comp – Dustin McCloud – puncture left thumb 2005 10 2016 1110 


Work Comp – Kathy Turner – dog bite left thigh 2005 10 2016 1110 


Work Comp – Kathy Turner – dog bite right hand 2005 10 2016 1110 


Work Comp – Mike Walser – (fire) hands burned 2004 10 2015 1110 


Work Comp – Robert Williams – left knee 2005 10 2016 1110 


     


 Court Records  


(see attached certification approval) 


    


Disposed Municipal Court Records     


Closed Municipal Court Records        
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Resolution 2016-5 
Agenda Item 


 
TO:  Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:  Mark S. Gaugh, City Manager 
 
DATE: March 7, 2016 
 
RE:  Budget Amendment 
 
Issues  
 
Throughout the fiscal year, we compare revenues and expenses in order to see where an 
amendment is necessary to provide a balance of funds. Sometimes expenditures are of an 
emergency nature and a reserve transfer is necessary within the fund to show the 
accounting of funds. Another reason to have a budget amendment is to remove any 
budgeted items that we know will not be spent. This helps to identify actual expenditures 
and may be preferable to “clean up” the budget in places. This amendment is the first one 
this fiscal year. We will do them as needed, and expect that quarterly adjustments will be 
preferred. Quarterly adjustments worked well this past fiscal year. 
 
Explanations of adjustments for each fund are attached. 
 
Recommendation 


 
Staff recommends that the Council approve the budget amendment. 
 







Resolution 2016-5 
 
A RESOLUTION FOR THE CITY OF CAMERON, CLINTON AND 


DeKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI APPROVING BUDGET 
ADJUSTMENT ONE (1)) FOR THE BUDGET YEAR OF OCTOBER 


1, 2015 TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 


 WHEREAS, RSMo 67.030 authorizes the governing body to revise budget limits 
as the need arises; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the intent of the budget adjustment is to maintain sound fiscal 
control over expenditures and transfers; and 
 
 WHEREAS, budget amendments provide greater transparency of fund 
expenditures. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CAMERON, CLINTON AND DeKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI, that 
the Mayor and City Council for the City of Cameron, Clinton and DeKalb Counties, 
Missouri hereby adopts Budget Adjustment One (1) for the 2015-2016 budget year 
providing the limits for revenues and expenses of various City funds as per appropriation 
schedules, which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.  
 


Passed and approved this 7th day of March 2016.  
  
           
            
        _______________________ 
        Mayor Dennis M. Clark  
ATTEST:   
 
 
 __________________________ 
City Clerk/Finance Clerk 
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		Passed and approved this 7th day of March 2016.








 


RESOLUTION 2016-6 
Agenda Item 


 


TO:  Mayor and City Council 


FROM: Zachary Johnson, Director of Utilities 


DATE: March 7, 2016 


RE:  GNWWC Representative Appointment 


 


Purpose 
 
One requirement for being a member of the Great Northwest Wholesale Water Commission is 
the City must appoint an official representative and an alternate representative to serve on the 
Commission’s Board of Directors.  Our previous resolution appointing the representatives was 
done in 2010 and needs to be updated. 
 
Discussion 
 
Currently, Councilman Jack is serving as our official representative and Manager Gaugh is 
serving as the alternate.  This resolution would keep the appointments the same.   
 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends passing the resolution appointing Councilman Jack as the official 
representative and Manager Gaugh as the alternate representative. 







Resolution 2016-6 


RESOLUTION TO DESIGNATE AN OFFICIAL REPRESENTATIVE AND 
ALTERNATE REPRESENTATIVE TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 


THE GREAT NORTHWEST WHOLESALE WATER COMMISSION 


 WHEREAS, the City of Cameron, Missouri, is a member of the Great Northwest 
Wholesale Water Commission and has executed a Joint Contract with the same; and 


 WHEREAS, the Great Northwest Wholesale Water Commission requires each of its 
members’ to designate an Official Representative and an Alternate Representative to represent 
the member on the full Board of Directors of the Great Northwest Wholesale Water Commission 
and, 


 WHEREAS, the City of Cameron, Missouri wishes to designate an Official 
Representative and an Alternate Representative. 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council for the City 
of Cameron, Clinton and DeKalb Counties, Missouri, as follows: 


 Section 1: The City Council does hereby appoint Ronnie Jack as the Official 
Representative and Mark Gaugh as Alternate Representative to the Board of Directors of the 
Great Northwest Wholesale Water Commission.  


 Section 2: This Resolution shall become effective upon the date of its adoption.  


Section 3:  The Mayor is hereby authorized to sign this Resolution on behalf of the City 
of Cameron. 


 Section 4:  The City Clerk is hereby authorized to attest to the Mayor’s signature for all 
documents evidenced in the Resolution. 


 PASSED AND APPROVED this 7th day of March 2016. 


   
        _____________________________ 
        Mayor Dennis M. Clark 


ATTEST: 


 


__________________________ 
City Clerk/Finance Clerk 
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Resolution 2016-7 
Agenda Item 


 
 


 
TO:  Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:  Mark S. Gaugh, City Manager 
 
DATE: March 7, 2016 
 
RE:  Resolution to Cover Costs of Sunshine Law Compliance  
 
Issues  
 
 
Recently, the City received a records request from opposing attorneys involved in 
litigation with the City over tax payments due. Since it has to be determined which 
records are closed, legal research is required. The opposing attorneys do not want to pay 
for the legal expense incurred by the City to meet their request. 
 
The attached Resolution requests an opinion from the Missouri Attorney General, 
regarding the collection of fees for legal research done by the City’s hired attorneys. This 
research is required by the Sunshine Law when requested, and when there is litigation, 
the opposing attorneys can request all sorts of information from the City. This runs up the 
cost of the litigation, which should not be assessed to the City.  
 
Recommendation 


 
Staff recommends that the Council approve the Resolution for a determination from the 
Missouri Attorney General. 
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RESOLUTION- 2016___ 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
REQUESTING A FORMAL OPINION FROM 


THE MISSOURI ATTORNEY GENERAL 
  


WHEREAS, the City has received a records request, purportedly pursuant to the 
Missouri Sunshine Law, which required the City’s attorneys to research whether particular 
records are open or closed;  


 WHEREAS, the City has asserted that the time spent by the City’s attorneys (who are 
outside counsel not employed by the City) researching to determine whether particular records 
are open or closed in response to a records request is chargeable to the requestor of information 
pursuant to § 610.026.1(1), which provides that “[r]esearch time required for fulfilling records 
requests may be charged at the actual cost of research time”;  
  
 WHEREAS, the City recognizes that the Missouri Attorney General has already opined 
in a letter that Chapter 610 permits the City to charge an attorney’s “actual cost for 
doing…research” regarding a records request;  
   
 WHEREAS, despite this prior opinion by the Missouri Attorney General, the requestor 
of information disputes the City’s ability to charge time spent by the City’s attorneys researching 
whether particular records are open or closed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, regarding the City’s determination of closing particular records under the 
Missouri Sunshine Law, the City desires to resolve any about the legality of charging certain of 
its costs for making that determination by seeking a formal opinion of the Missouri Attorney 
General. 
 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CAMERON, MISSOURI as follows: 


Section 1: The City Manager of the City of Cameron, Missouri, is authorized to 
request on behalf of the City of Cameron, Missouri that the Missouri Attorney General issue a 
formal opinion regarding whether Chapter 610 permits a public governmental body to charge for 
time spent by the City’s attorneys (whether outside counsel or otherwise) researching to 
determine whether particular records were open or closed in response to a Sunshine request.      


Section 2: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 
and approval as provided by law. 
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Passed and approved by the City Council on this __ day of __________ 2016.  
            


             
     _________________________________   
     Mayor Dennis M. Clark 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
City Clerk/Finance Clerk 
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Resolution 2016-8 


Agenda Item 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council 
FROM: Zachary Johnson, Director of Utilities 
DATE: March 7, 2016 
RE:  Compact Cable Fault Locator 
 
Purpose 
The City’s electrical cable fault locator is out of date and no longer operational.  The unit is used 
to detect and locate faults in underground wire and cable.  The City of Cameron has over 70 
miles of underground primary and secondary wire, with more and more being installed each 
year.  Being able to locate these faults will allow for a quicker repair and cut down on the 
number of outage hours.       
 
Discussion 
We have currently evaluated several different compact cable fault locators.  The Megger Easy 
Thump was clearly the unit of choice for several reasons.  This particular unit is commonly used 
within our region.  Platte-Clay and Farmers Electric currently use this model.  This allows for 
potential sharing of resources, accessories, and knowledge.  Other contributing factors are the 
functionality of the unit and the price as compared to other models considered.  Arkansas 
Electric Cooperatives, Inc. submitted a quote for a new Megger Easy Thump, certificate of 
calibrations, elbow adaptors, and a digiphone for $26,226.10.        
 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Council pass the Resolution to accept the proposal from Arkansas Electric 
Cooperatives, Inc. for the Megger Easy Thump and optional accessories.  Funds necessary for 
this purchase have been allocated in the 2016 Budget. 







Resolution 2016-8 


A RESOLUTION FOR THE CITY OF CAMERON, CLINTON AND 
DeKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI TO ACCEPT A PROPOSAL FOR A 


COMPACT CABLE FAULT LOCATOR FROM ARKANSAS ELECTRIC 
COOPERATIVES, INC. 


  


WHEREAS, the City of Cameron Electric Department owns and maintains a distribution 
system for the purpose of delivering electrical power to the residents of Cameron; and  


 WHEREAS, the City has over 8 (eight) miles of underground primary and 63 miles of 
underground secondary cable; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City strives to provide safe and reliable energy to our valued customers 
with minimal disruptions in service. 


 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council for the City 


of Cameron, Clinton and DeKalb Counties, Missouri, as follows: 
 


 Section 1: The Council does hereby accept the proposal of $26,226.10 for the purchase of 
a new Megger Easy Thump with elbow adaptors and Digiphone Plus from Arkansas Electric 
Cooperative, Inc. 
 
 Section 2: This Resolution shall become effective upon the date of its adoption.  
 


Section 3:  The Mayor is hereby authorized to sign this Resolution on behalf of the City 
of Cameron. 


 
 Section 4:  The City Clerk is hereby authorized to attest to the Mayor’s signature for all 
documents evidenced in the Resolution. 
  


PASSED AND APPROVED this 7th day of March 2016. 
   
        _____________________________ 
        Mayor Dennis M. Clark 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________ 
City Clerk/Finance Clerk 
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Resolution 2016-9 
 


AGENDA ITEM 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council  
 
FROM: Public Works Director, Drew Bontrager 
 
DATE: March 7, 2016  
 
RE:  Notice of Award to BRS Construction, LLC for 6th & Lathrop Project    
   
 


PURPOSE 
The attached resolution authorizes the City Manager to issue the official Notice of Award to 
BRS Construction, LLC for the 6th & Lathrop Project. Once the Notice of Award is issued, 
BRS Construction, LLC may begin to obtain all the bonding, insurance and other documents 
necessary to enter into the contract for services. We anticipate within a couple weeks they 
should have all the required documents and the executed contract to present to Council to 
enter into a contract.   
 
Three of the projects listed as part of the Street Improvement Tax are included in this 
project. Improvements will occur on Lathrop, from 4th to 6th; Mead, from 6th to 8th; Harris, 
from 5th to 6th; 5th from Harris to Lathrop; and 6th Street from Harris to Mead.  
 
Bids for the 6th & Lathrop Project were opened on February 23, 2016, with a total of five (5) 
bids received. BRS Construction, LLC was the apparent low bidder with a base bid of 
$905,569.40. The Engineer’s Opinion of Total Probable Cost was $1,106,237.00.  The bid 
tab is attached for your review.   
 
Our engineers are actively checking references, bonding capacity and other sources to verify 
BRS Construction’s ability to complete this project. We will have a letter from Transystems 
once they are complete and before we recommend entering into a contract with BRS 
Construction, LLC.    


 
RECOMMENDATION 


Staff recommends accepting the bids and issuing the Notice of Award to BRS Construction, 
LLC for the 6th & Lathrop Project.   







Resolution 2016-9 
 


A RESOLUTION FOR THE CITY OF CAMERON, CLINTON AND 
DeKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI ACCEPTING THE BIDS FOR THE 


SIXTH STREET AND LATHROP STREET PROJECT AND AWARDING 
THE BID TO BRS CONSTRUCTION, LLC. 


 
WHEREAS, the City of Cameron did advertise for bids for the Sixth Street and Lathrop 


Street Project and received a total of five (5) bids; and 
 
 WHEREAS, BRS Construction, LLC. submitted the apparent low bid of $905,569.40; 


and  
 
          WHEREAS, BRS Construction, LLC. has been reviewed by our engineers, Transystems, 
and approved for recommendation of Notice of Award.   
 
            NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CAMERON, CLINTON AND DeKALB COUNTIES MISSOURI, AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
            Section 1.  The City Council of the City of Cameron does hereby accept all bids 
submitted and received relating to the Sixth Street and Lathrop Street Project, pursuant to bid 
specifications, and hereby awards the bid to BRS Construction, LLC. 
 
            Section 2.  This Resolution shall become effective upon the date of its adoption and 
authorizes the City Manager to sign the Notice of Award.   
 


Section 3.  The City Clerk is hereby authorized to attest to the Mayor’s signature for all 
documents evidenced in this Resolution. 


 
Passed and approved this 7th day of March 2016. 


 
 
             
                 ___________________________________ 
      Mayor Dennis M. Clark 
Attest: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
City Clerk/Finance Clerk 
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